
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K 

For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2005

For the Transition Period From _____ to ____

Commission file number 1-8308 

Luby's, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and (2) has been 
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o 
 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant's knowledge, in definitive 
proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. x 
  

x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)  
  OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)  
  OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  

Delaware 74-1335253 
(State of incorporation) (IRS Employer Identification Number)

13111 Northwest Freeway, Suite 600
Houston, Texas 77040

(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(713) 329-6800 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

 
Title of Class

Name of Exchange on 
which registered

Common Stock ($.32 par value per share) New York Stock Exchange

   
Common Stock Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange

Page 1



 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No x 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes x No o 
 
The aggregate market value of the shares of common stock of the registrant held by nonaffiliates of the registrant as of February 9, 2005, was approximately $130,315,279 (based upon the assumption that 
directors and executive officers are the only affiliates). 
 
As of November 7, 2005, there were 25,964,505 shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding, which does not include 1,676,403 treasury shares. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the following document are incorporated by reference into the designated parts of this Form 10-K: 

Definitive Proxy Statement relating to 2006 annual meeting of shareholders (in Part III)

Page 2



 
Luby's, Inc.

Form 10-K 
Year ended August 31, 2005

Table of Contents

Additional Information

    Page

Part I

       
Item 1 Business 5 
       
Item 1A Risk Factors 6  
       
Item 2 Properties 9 
       
Item 3 Legal Proceedings 9 
       
Item 4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 9 
       
Item 4A Executive Officers of the Registrant 9 
       

Part II

       
Item 5 Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 11 
       
Item 6 Selected Financial Data 12 
       
Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 13 
      
Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 24  
       
Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 25 
       
Item 9 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 56 
       
Item 9A Controls and Procedures 57 
       
Item 9B Other Information 57 
       

Part III

       
Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 58 
       
Item 11 Executive Compensation 58 
       
Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 58 
       
Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 59 
       
Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services 59 
       

Part IV

       
       
Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 60 
       
Signatures    
       

Page 3



The Company's Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports are available free of charge via hyperlink on its website at 
www.lubys.com. The Company makes these reports available as soon as reasonably practicable upon filing with the SEC. Information on the Company's website is not incorporated into this report. 
 
Compliance with New York Stock Exchange Requirements 
As required by the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) Listed Company Manual, the CEO of the Company submitted the previous year’s certification to the NYSE certifying that the CEO is not aware of 
any violation by the Company of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards as of the date of that certification.  
 
The Company is filing as an exhibit to this Form 10-K the certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
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PART I

Overview 
Luby's, Inc. (formerly, Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.) was originally incorporated in Texas in 1959 and was reincorporated in Delaware on December 31, 1991. The Company’s corporate offices are located at 13111 
Northwest Freeway, Suite 600, Houston, Texas 77040 and its telephone number at that address is (713) 329-6800. 
 
Luby's, Inc. was restructured into a holding company on February 1, 1997, at which time all of the operating assets were transferred to Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership, a Texas limited partnership 
composed of two wholly owned, indirect corporate subsidiaries of the Company. All restaurant operations are conducted by the partnership. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the word “Company”, 
as used herein includes the partnership and the consolidated corporate subsidiaries of Luby's, Inc. The Company operates under only one business segment.  
 
As of November 7, 2005, the Company operated 131 restaurants under the name “Luby's.” These establishments are located in close proximity to retail centers, business developments, and residential 
areas throughout five states (listed under Item 2). Of the 131 restaurants, 93 are located on properties owned by the Company and 38 are on leased premises. Two of the restaurants primarily serve 
seafood, four are full-time buffets, seven are cafeteria-style restaurants with all-you-can-eat options, and 118 are traditional cafeterias. 
 
Operations 
The Company's operations provide guests with a wide variety of delicious, home-style food, with the majority of locations serving food in a cafeteria-style manner. Daily, each restaurant offers 20 to 22 
entrees, 12 to 14 vegetable dishes, 12 to 16 salads, and 16 to 20 varieties of desserts. Food is prepared in small quantities throughout serving hours, and frequent quality checks are conducted. 
 
The Company's historical marketing research has shown that its products appeal to a broad range of value-oriented consumers with particular success among families with children, seniors, shoppers, 
travelers, and business people looking for a quick, home-style meal at a reasonable price. During fiscal 2005, the Company spent approximately 1.9% of its sales on traditional marketing venues, including 
television, newsprint, radio, point-of-purchase, and local-store marketing.  
 
Luby's restaurants are generally open for lunch and dinner seven days a week. All of the restaurants sell take-out orders, and many of them have separate food-to-go entrances, which provide guests the 
option of enjoying complete and flavorful meals at the office or at home. Take-out orders accounted for 14.3% of total sales in fiscal 2005. Twenty-five of the Luby’s restaurants serve breakfast on the 
weekends, accounting for 1.0% of total sales in fiscal 2005. Those locations offer a wide array of popular breakfast foods served buffet-style. They also feature made-to-order omelet, pancake, and waffle 
stations. 
 
The Company operates from a centralized purchasing arrangement to obtain the economic benefit of bulk purchasing and lower prices for most of its food products. The arrangement involves a 
competitively selected prime vendor for each of its three major purchasing regions. 
 
Food is prepared fresh daily at the Company's restaurants. Menus are reviewed periodically by a committee of managers and chefs. The committee introduces newly developed recipes to ensure offerings 
are varied and that seasonal food preferences are incorporated. 
 
Quality control teams also help to maintain uniform standards of food preparation. The teams visit each restaurant as necessary and work with the staff to confirm adherence to Company recipes, train 
personnel in new techniques, and implement systems and procedures used universally throughout the Company. 
 
During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, the Company closed seven underperforming units.  
 
As of November 7, 2005, the Company had a workforce of 7,680, consisting of 7,200 non-management restaurant workers; 330 restaurant managers, associate managers, and assistant managers; and 150 
clerical, administrative, and  
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executive employees. Each restaurant is operated as a separate unit under the control of a general manager who has responsibility for day-to-day operations, including food production and personnel 
employment and supervision. The Company’s philosophy is to grant authority to its restaurant managers to direct the daily operations of their stores and, in turn, to compensate them on the basis of their 
performance, believing this strategy to be a significant factor in restaurant profitability. The majority of general managers employed by the company, 89, as of November 7, 2005, have more than ten years 
of experience at Luby’s. This large percentage of tenured general managers enhances the Company’s execution. Employee relations are considered to be good. The Company has never had a strike or 
work stoppage and is not subject to collective bargaining agreements.  
 
Service Marks 
The Company uses several service marks, including “Luby's,” and believes that such marks are of material importance to its business. The Company has federal registrations for its service marks as 
deemed appropriate. 
 
The Company is not the sole user of the name Luby's in the cafeteria business. A cafeteria using the name Luby's is being operated in Texas by an unaffiliated company. The Company's legal counsel is 
of the opinion that the Company has the paramount right to use the name Luby's as a service mark in the United States and that the other user could be precluded from expanding its use of the name as a 
service mark.  
 

 
An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below, and all other information included in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K, before you decide whether to purchase our common stock. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also become important 
factors that may harm our business, financial condition or results of operations. The occurrence of any of the following risks could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. The 
trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks and uncertainties, and you may lose part or all of your investment. 
 
We face intense competition, and if we are unable to compete effectively, our business and financial performance will be adversely affected. 
The restaurant industry is intensely competitive and is affected by changes in customer tastes and dietary habits and by national, regional and local economic conditions and demographic trends. New 
menu items, concepts, and trends are constantly emerging. We compete on quality, variety, value, service, concept, price, and location with well-established national and regional chains, as well as with 
locally owned and operated restaurants. We face significant competition from family-style restaurants, fast-casual restaurants, and buffets as well as fast food restaurants. In addition, we also face 
growing competition as a result of the trend toward convergence in grocery, deli, and restaurant services, particularly in the supermarket industry, which offers “convenient meals” in the form of improved 
entrées and side dishes from the deli section. Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial resources than we do. We also compete with other restaurants and retail establishments for 
restaurant sites and personnel. We anticipate that intense competition will continue. If we are unable to compete effectively, our business, financial condition, and results of operations would be 
materially adversely affected. 
 
Changes in customer preferences for cafeteria-style dining could adversely affect our financial performance. 
Changing customer preferences, tastes and dietary habits can adversely impact our business and financial performance. We offer a large variety of entrees, side dishes and desserts and our continued 
success depends, in part, on the popularity of our cuisine and cafeteria-style dining. A change away from this cuisine or dining style could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In 
addition, we may lose customers as a result of price increases.  
 
We face the risk of adverse publicity and litigation, the cost of which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance.  
We may from time to time be the subject of complaints or litigation from customers alleging illness, injury or other food quality, health or operational concerns. Publicity resulting from these allegations 
may materially adversely affect us, regardless of whether the allegations are valid or whether we are liable. In addition, we are subject to employee claims alleging injuries, wage and hour violations, 
discrimination, harassment or wrongful termination. In recent years, a number of restaurant companies have been subject to lawsuits, including class action lawsuits,  

Table of Contents

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

Page 6



alleging violations of federal and state law regarding workplace, employment and similar matters. A number of these lawsuits have resulted in the payment of substantial damages by the defendants. 
Regardless of whether any claims against us are valid or whether we are ultimately determined to be liable, claims may be expensive to defend and may divert time and money away from our operations 
and hurt our financial performance. A judgment significantly in excess of our insurance coverage, if any, for any claims could materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.  
 
Unfavorable publicity relating to one or more of our restaurants may taint public perception of the Luby's brand. Multi-unit restaurant businesses can be adversely affected by publicity resulting from 
poor food quality, illness or other health concerns or operating issues stemming from one or a limited number of restaurants. 
 
Our business is affected by local, state and federal regulations.
The restaurant industry is subject to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations. The development and operation of restaurants depend to a significant extent on the selection and acquisition 
of suitable sites, which are subject to zoning, land use, environmental, traffic and other regulations and requirements. We are also subject to licensing and regulation by state and local authorities relating 
to health, sanitation, safety and fire standards, building codes and liquor licenses, federal and state laws governing our relationships with employees (including the Fair Labor Standards Act and 
applicable minimum wage requirements, overtime, unemployment tax rates, family leave, tip credits, working conditions, safety standards and citizenship requirements), federal and state laws which 
prohibit discrimination and other laws regulating the design and operation of facilities, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990. In addition, we are subject to a variety of federal, state and 
local laws and regulations relating to the use, storage, discharge, emission, and disposal of hazardous materials. The impact of current laws and regulations, the effect of future changes in laws or 
regulations that impose additional requirements and the consequences of litigation relating to current or future laws and regulations could increase our compliance and other costs of doing business and 
therefore, have an adverse effect on our results of operations. Failure to comply with the laws and regulatory requirements of federal, state and local authorities could result in, among other things, 
revocation of required licenses, administrative enforcement actions, fines and civil and criminal liability. 
 
If we are unable to anticipate and react to changes in food, utility and other costs, our results of operations could be materially adversely affected.  
Many of the food and beverage products we purchase are affected by commodity pricing, and as such, are subject to price volatility caused by production problems, shortages, weather or other factors 
outside of our control. Our profitability depends, in part, on our successfully anticipating and reacting to changes in the prices of commodities. Therefore, we enter into purchase commitments with 
suppliers when we believe that it is advantageous for us to do so. Should there be an adverse change in commodity prices, we may be forced to absorb the additional costs rather than transfer the 
resulting increases in commodity prices to our customers in the form of price increases. Our success also depends, in part, on our ability to absorb increases in utility costs. Our operating results are 
affected by fluctuations in the price of utilities. Our inability to anticipate and respond effectively to an adverse change in any of these factors could have a significant adverse effect on our results of 
operations. 
 
Because our restaurants are concentrated in Texas, regional events can adversely affect our financial performance. 
Approximately 94% of our restaurants were located in Texas as of November 7, 2005. Our remaining restaurants are located in Arizona, Arkansas, Louisiana, and Oklahoma. This concentration could 
adversely affect our financial performance in a number of ways. For example, our results of operations may be adversely affected by economic conditions in Texas or the Southern United States or the 
occurrence of an event of terrorism or natural disaster in any of the communities in which we operate. Also, given our geographic concentration, adverse publicity relating to our restaurants could have a 
more pronounced adverse effect on our overall revenues than might be the case if our restaurants were more broadly dispersed. 
 
Inclement weather can adversely affect our financial performance.
Many of our restaurants are located in the Texas Gulf Coast region. Although we generally maintain property and casualty insurance to protect against property damage caused by casualties and natural 
disasters, inclement weather, flooding, hurricanes and other acts of God can adversely impact our sales in several ways. For example, poor weather typically discourages potential customers from going 
out to eat. In addition, a restaurant that is damaged by a natural disaster can be inoperable for a significant amount of time. 
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Our planned expansion may not be successful.
We plan to begin development of two new cafeteria restaurants in Texas, which we currently expect to open in 2007. Our ability to open and profitably operate restaurants is subject to various risks such 
as the identification and availability of suitable and economically viable locations, the negotiation of acceptable lease or purchase terms for new locations, the need to obtain all required governmental 
permits (including zoning approvals) on a timely basis, the need to comply with other regulatory requirements, the availability of necessary contractors and subcontractors, the availability of construction 
materials and labor, the ability to meet construction schedules and budgets, the ability to manage union activities such as picketing or hand billing which could delay construction, increases in labor and 
building materials costs, the availability of financing at acceptable rates and terms, changes in weather or other acts of God that could result in construction delays and adversely affect the results of one 
or more restaurants for an indeterminate amount of time, our ability to hire and train qualified management personnel and general economic and business conditions. At each potential location, we 
compete with other restaurants and retail businesses for desirable development sites, construction contractors, management personnel, hourly employees and other resources. If we are unable to 
successfully manage these risks, we could face increased costs and lower than anticipated revenues and earnings in future periods.  
 
If we lose the services of any of our key management personnel, our business could suffer.
The success of our business is highly dependent upon our key management personnel, particularly Christopher J. Pappas, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and Harris J. Pappas, our Chief 
Operating Officer. The loss of the services of any of our key management personnel could have a materially adverse effect upon our business. 

Labor shortages or increases in labor costs could harm our business.
Our success depends in part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, including regional managers, restaurant general managers and chefs, in a manner 
consistent with our standards and expectations. Qualified individuals that we need to fill these positions are in short supply and competition for these employees is intense. If we are unable to recruit and 
retain sufficient qualified individuals, our operations and reputation could be adversely affected. Additionally, competition for qualified employees could require us to pay higher wages, which could 
result in higher labor costs. If our labor costs increase, our results of operations will be negatively affected. 
 
Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations, and, as a result, our results of operations for any given quarter may not be indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal year. 
Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations. Historically, our highest earnings have occurred in the third quarter of the fiscal year, as our revenues in most of our restaurants have typically been 
higher during the third quarter of the fiscal year. Similarly, our results of operations for any single quarter will not necessarily be indicative of the results that may be achieved for a full fiscal year. 
 
General economic factors may adversely affect our results of operations.
National, regional and local economic conditions, such as recessionary economic cycles, a protracted economic slowdown or a worsening economy, could adversely affect disposable consumer income 
and consumer confidence. Unfavorable changes in these factors or in other business and economic conditions affecting our customers could reduce customer traffic in some or all of our restaurants, 
impose practical limits on our pricing and increase our costs, any of which could lower our profit margins and have a material adverse affect on our results of operations.  
 
An increase in the minimum wage could adversely affect our financial performance.
From time to time, the U.S. Congress considers an increase in the federal minimum wage. The restaurant industry is intensely competitive, and if the federal minimum wage is increased, we may not be able 
to transfer all of the resulting increases in operating costs to our customers in the form of price increases. In addition, since our business is labor-intensive, shortages in the labor pool or other inflationary 
pressure could increase labor costs, which could harm our financial performance. 
 
Inflation can negatively affect our financial performance.
The impact of inflation on food, labor and other aspects of our business can negatively affect our results of operations. Commodity inflation in food, beverages and utilities can also impact our financial 
performance. Although we attempt to offset inflation through periodic menu price increases, cost controls and incremental improvement in operating margins, we may not be able to completely do so 
which could negatively affect our results of operations. 
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The Company's restaurants typically contain 8,000 to 10,500 square feet of floor space and can seat 250 to 300 guests simultaneously. 
 
Luby's restaurants are well maintained and in good condition. In order to maintain appearance and operating efficiency, the Company refurbishes and updates its restaurants and equipment and performs 
scheduled maintenance.  
 
As of November 7, 2005, the Company's restaurants were regionally located as follows: two in Arizona, two in Arkansas, two in Louisiana, two in Oklahoma, and 123 in Texas.  
 
The Company owns the underlying land and buildings in which 93 of its restaurants are located. Nine of these restaurant properties contain excess building space, which is rented to tenants unaffiliated 
with the Company. 
 
In addition to the owned locations, 38 other restaurants are held under leases, including 14 in regional shopping malls. Most of the leases provide for a combination of fixed-dollar and percentage rentals. 
Many require the Company to pay additional amounts related to property taxes, hazard insurance, and maintenance of common areas. Of the 38 restaurant leases, the current terms of 16 expire before 2010, 
13 expire between 2010 to 2014, and nine thereafter. Of the 38 restaurant leases, 36 can be extended beyond their current terms at the Company's option. The Company leases approximately 25,000 square 
feet of corporate office space, which lease extends through 2011. The corporate office space is located off the Northwest Freeway in Houston, Texas in close proximity to many of its Houston restaurant 
locations. The Company also leases warehouse space in the Houston, Texas area (See “Affiliations and Related Parties - Affiliations”). See Note 11, “Operating Leases” of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for information concerning the Company's lease rental expenses and lease commitments. 
 
As of November 7, 2005, the Company had eleven owned properties, with a carrying value of $8.3 million, and five properties located on ground leases on the market for sale. 
 
The Company maintains public liability insurance and property damage insurance on its properties in amounts which management believes to be adequate. 
 

 
The Company is from time to time subject to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of pending claims and lawsuits will not 
have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations or consolidated financial position. There are no material legal proceedings to which any director, officer, or affiliate of the Company, or any 
associate of any such director or officer, is a party, or has a material interest, adverse to the Company. 
 

 
No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, to a vote of security holders of the Company.  
 

 
Certain information is set forth below concerning the executive officers of the Company, each of whom has been elected to serve until his successor is duly elected and qualified: 
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Name

  Served as
Officer Since

  Positions with Company and 
Principal Occupation Last Five Years

   
Age

             
Christopher J. Pappas   2001   President and CEO (since March 2001), CEO of Pappas Restaurants, Inc.   58

             
Harris J. Pappas   2001   Chief Operating Officer (since March 2001), President of Pappas Restaurants, 

Inc.
  61

             
Ernest Pekmezaris   2001   Senior Vice President and CFO (since March 2001), Treasurer and former CFO of 

Pappas Restaurants, Inc.
  61

             
Peter Tropoli   2001   Senior Vice President-Administration and General Counsel (since March 2001), 

attorney in private practice.
  33
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PART II

 
Stock Prices 
The Company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “LUB.” The following table sets forth, for the last two fiscal years, the high and low sales prices on the New 
York Stock Exchange as reported in the consolidated transaction reporting system.  
 

 
As of November 7, 2005, there were approximately 3,384 holders of record of the Company's common stock. No cash dividends have been paid on the Company’s common stock in the past two fiscal 
years and the Company currently has no intention to pay a cash dividend on the Company’s common stock. The Company’s Revolving Credit Facility imposes limitations on the Company’s ability to pay 
cash dividends. 
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Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Fiscal Quarter Ended   High   Low  
         
November 19, 2003   $ 3.69  $ 2.28 
February 11, 2004     3.94    3.27 
May 5, 2004     6.37    3.60 
August 25, 2004     6.95    4.85 
November 17, 2004     8.08    6.05 
February 9, 2005     7.99    5.75 
May 4, 2005     8.39    5.95 
August 31, 2005     14.80    7.70 
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Five-Year Summary of Operations 
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    Fiscal Year Ended  

 
 

August 31,

2005 (a) 
 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27,
2003

(As adjusted)  

August 28,
2002

(As adjusted)  

August 31,
2001

(As adjusted)  
    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)   (362 days)   (365 days)  
    (In thousands except per share data)  
                       
SALES   $ 322,151  $ 297,849  $ 291,740  $ 307,250  $ 354,265 
COSTS AND EXPENSES:                           

Cost of food     86,280    79,923    78,921    77,775    87,702 
Payroll and related costs     115,481    112,961    114,655    128,680    155,665 
Other operating expenses     64,796    59,447    55,342    59,282    71,267 
Depreciation and amortization     15,054    16,259    17,204    17,251    17,635 
Relocation and voluntary severance costs     669    860    -    -    - 
General and administrative expenses     20,750    19,748    23,301    21,183    25,253 
(Reversal of ) provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on 
sales), net  

  (632)   413    1,175    271    30,240 
      302,398    289,611    290,598    304,442    387,762 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS     19,753    8,238    1,142    2,808    (33,497)

Interest expense     (11,636)   (8,094)   (7,610)   (7,676)   (8,135)
Other income, net     574    2,689    7,069    2,365    2,160 

Income (loss) before income taxes     8,691    2,833    601    (2,503)   (39,472)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes     117    (2,856)   (1,441)   (726)   (13,668)

Income (loss) from continuing operations     8,574    5,689    2,042    (1,777)   (25,804)

Discontinued operations, net of taxes     (5,126)   (8,811)   (31,763)   (7,699)   (5,743)

NET INCOME (LOSS)   $ 3,448  $ (3,122) $ (29,721) $ (9,476) $ (31,547)

Income (loss) per share from continuing operations:                           
Basic   $ 0.38  $ 0.25  $ 0.09  $ (0.08) $ (1.15) 
Assuming dilution   $ 0.37  $ 0.25  $ 0.09  $ (0.08) $ (1.15)

Loss per share from discontinued operations:                           
Basic   $ (0.23) $ (0.39) $ (1.41) $ (0.34) $ (0.26)
Assuming dilution   $ (0.22) $ (0.39) $ (1.41) $ (0.34) $ (0.26)

Net income (loss) per share:                           
Basic   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32) $ (0.42) $ (1.41)

Assuming dilution   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32) $ (0.42) $ (1.41)

Cash dividend declared per common share   $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

At year-end:                           
Total assets   $ 206,214  $ 232,281  $ 275,675  $ 339,474  $ 351,209 

Long-term debt (including net convertible subordinated debt) (b)   $ 13,500  $ 53,561  $ -  $ 5,883  $ 127,401 

Total debt   $ 13,500  $ 53,561  $ 98,532  $ 124,331  $ 127,401 

Weighted-average shares outstanding                           
Basic     22,608    22,470    22,451    22,428    22,422 
Assuming dilution (c)     23,455    22,679    22,532    22,428    22,422 

Number of restaurants at year end     131    138    148    196    213 

(a) Fiscal year ended August 31, 2005 consists of 53 weeks, while all other periods presented consist of 52 weeks.
(b) See the “Debt” sections of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(c) Potentially dilutive shares that were not included in the computation of net income (loss) per share because to do so would have been antidilutive amounted to 3,219,000 shares in fiscal 2005, 

2,216,000 in fiscal 2004, and 2,000,000 in fiscal 2003 (including the dilutive effect of the convertible subordinated notes). Additionally, stock options with exercise prices exceeding current market 
prices that were excluded from the computation of net income (loss) per share amounted to 484,000 shares in fiscal 2005, 2,495,000 shares in fiscal 2004 and 4,078,000 shares in fiscal 2003. 
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Five-Year Summary of Operations (continued) 

Note: Fiscal year 2002, the year in which the Company moved from 12 calendar months to 13 four-week periods, was 362 days in length. Fiscal 2003 and 2004 were each 364 days in length. Fiscal 2005, 
however, was a 53 week year and was 371 days in length. The quarter ended August 31, 2005, consisted of three four-week periods and one five-week period.  
 
Note: The above selected financial data are derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements and have been adjusted for the retrospective application required under EITF 05-8, “Income Tax 
Consequences of Issuing Convertible Debt with a Beneficial Conversion Feature,”(“EITF 05-8”) adopted by the Company, effective for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005. Retroactive adoption of 
EITF 05-8 required the recording of increased income tax benefits, which resulted in increased income from continuing operations and net income of $2.9 million in fiscal 2004, $1.4 million in fiscal 2003, 
$169,000 in fiscal 2002 and $28,000 in fiscal 2001. The adoption had no impact on fiscal 2005. See further discussion in Note 2 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, “Change in Method of 
Accounting for Deferred Income Taxes Related to the Beneficial Conversion Feature of Subordinated Debt” in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Summary Data” of this Form 10-K. 
 
Note: Store management compensation has been reclassified from “Other Operating Expenses” to “Payroll and Related Costs” to provide comparability to financial results reported by our peers in the 
industry. All prior period results reported have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 
 
Below is a summary of the reclassified expenses: 
 

 
Note: The Company's business plan, as approved in fiscal 2003, called for the closure of approximately 50 locations. In accordance with the plan, the entire fiscal activity of the applicable stores closed 
after the inception of the plan have been reclassified to discontinued operations. For comparison purposes, prior fiscal years results related to these same locations have also been reclassified to 
discontinued operations. 
  

 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Certain Reclassification of Expenses 
Store management compensation has been reclassified from “Other Operating Expenses” to “Payroll and Related Costs” to provide comparability to financial results reported by our peers in the industry. 
All prior period results reported have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation (See Item 6. Selected Financial Data-Five -Year Summary of Operations). 
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    Fiscal Year Ended  

   
August 31,

2005  
August 25,

2004  
August 27,

2003  
August 28,

2002  
August 31,

2001  
    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)   (362 days)   (365 days)  
    (In thousands)  
                       
Payroll and related costs                      

Payroll and related costs (previous classification)   $ 81,759  $ 82,163  $ 83,676  $ 97,068  $ 123,630 
Manager compensation reclassification     33,722    30,798    30,979    31,612    32,035 
Payroll and related costs (as reported)   $ 115,481  $ 112,961  $ 114,655  $ 128,680  $ 155,665 

Other operating expenses                           
Other operating expenses (previous classification)   $ 98,518  $ 90,245  $ 86,321  $ 90,894  $ 103,302 
Manager compensation reclassification     (33,722)   (30,798)   (30,979)   (31,612)   (32,035)

Other operating expenses (as reported)   $ 64,796  $ 59,447  $ 55,342  $ 59,282  $ 71,267 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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The Company's business plan, as approved in fiscal 2003, called for the closure of approximately 50 locations. In accordance with the plan, the entire fiscal activity of the applicable stores closed after the 
inception of the plan have been reclassified to discontinued operations. For comparison purposes, prior fiscal years results related to these same locations have also been reclassified to discontinued 
operations. 
 
Same-Store Sales 
The restaurant business is highly competitive with respect to food quality, concept, location, price, and service, all of which may have an effect on same-store sales. The Company's same-store sales 
calculation measures the relative performance of a certain group of restaurants. Specifically, to qualify for inclusion in this group, a store must have been in operation for 18 consecutive accounting 
periods. Although management believes this approach leads to more effective year-over-year comparisons, neither the time frame nor the exact practice may be similar to those used by other restaurant 
companies. 
 
The following shows the same-store sales change for comparative historical quarters: 

 
Fiscal 2005 (53 weeks) Compared to Fiscal 2004 (52 weeks) 
Sales increased $24.3 million, or 8.2%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004, $6.1 million of the increase is attributable to an additional week of sales or a 53rd week included in fiscal year 2005 versus fiscal 
year 2004 which was 52 weeks in length. Excluding the additional week, same-store sales growth for fiscal 2005 was 6.1%. Marketing promotions, continued customer appeal of the new combination meals, 
and improved product and service execution all contributed to the Company’s same-store sales growth. 
 
All of the Company’s sales during fiscal 2005 were characterized as same-store sales. In fiscal 2005, seven units were closed and reclassified to discontinued operations.  
 
Cost of food increased $6.4 million, or 8.0%, and was relatively flat as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. Higher commodity prices for beef, fresh produce, and dairy were slightly 
offset by lower poultry prices and the continued rollout of new combination meals with favorable costs structures. 
 
Payroll and related costs increased $2.5 million, or 2.2%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. As a percentage of sales, payroll and related costs were 35.9% in fiscal 2005 compared to 37.9% in fiscal 
2004. The decrease as a percentage of sales was primarily the result of a reduction in worker compensation expense and enhanced productivity due to higher sales and effective labor deployment. The 
reduction in workers compensation expense was due to revised reserve requirements resulting from reductions in recent claims experience. Such favorable reserve revisions are not expected to recur in 
fiscal 2006. These reductions in expense were partially offset by greater store management compensation expense. 
 
Other operating expenses increased $5.3 million, or 9.0%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. As a percentage of sales, other operating expenses increased 0.2%. This increase was driven primarily by 
increased advertising costs associated with the Company’s television marketing campaign and increased utility costs due to rising natural gas prices, which are expected to continue rising in fiscal 2006. 
These increases were partially offset by lower repairs and maintenance and insurance costs. 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $1.2 million, or 7.4%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. This decrease was a result of a reduction in the depreciable base of the Company’s property 
and equipment.  
 
Relocation and voluntary severance costs related to the relocation of the corporate offices to Houston, Texas decreased as the majority of the cost associated with the relocation included voluntary 
severance costs accrued for in fiscal 2004. The remaining relocation costs were expensed as incurred in fiscal 2005. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. 
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Fiscal 2005   Fiscal 2004   Fiscal 2003

Q4(a) Q3 Q2 Q1   Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1   Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

(17 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks)   (16 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks)   (16 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks) (12 wks)

13.8% 6.5% 5.8% 4.5%   4.2% 5.3% 1.0% (2.8)%   (3.7)% (5.8)% (3.8)% (7.0)%

(a) Reflects 17 weeks of sales activity. Excluding the seventeenth week for comparability with the sixteen-week fourth quarter of 2004, the same-store sales change for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 was 
an increase of 7.2%.
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General and administrative expenses increased $1.0 million, or 5.1%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. This increase was driven primarily by professional service costs related to compliance with the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and consulting fees associated with the implementation of new point-of-sale and accounting systems. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses were 
6.4% in fiscal 2005 compared to 6.6% in fiscal 2004.  
 
The provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net decreased by $1.0 million as a result of the significant impairment charges incurred in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2005. 
Fiscal 2005’s provision is the result of favorable adjustments of previously recorded provisions for two store locations and a gain on the sale of the San Antonio, Texas corporate office. 
 
Interest expense increased $3.5 million, or 43.8%, primarily due to a $7.9 million write-off of the unamortized portion of the discount associated with the convertible subordinated notes, which were 
converted to common stock in August 2005. This increase is offset partially by a $4.4 million decrease in interest expense due primarily to the continued reduction in outstanding debt under the line of 
credit. 
 
Other income decreased $2.1 million primarily due to gains on the sale of assets in fiscal 2004 versus fiscal 2005. The Company owns several long-lived assets that are classified as “held for sale” as a 
result of disposal activities that were initiated prior to the initial application of SFAS 144. Accordingly, gains and losses realized on the sales of these assets are classified as other income, net, in 
compliance with SFAS 121, under the transition guidance provided in Paragraph 51 of SFAS 144. 
 
The provision for income taxes in fiscal 2005 included a $117,000 provision for alternative minimum tax. For fiscal 2004, the Company recognized a $2.9 million tax benefit related to a reduction in the 
income tax valuation allowance triggered by the establishment of a deferred tax liability for the modification of the beneficial conversion feature on convertible subordinated debt. Additionally, because 
the Company’s loss carryforward more than offset fiscal 2004 income from continuing operations, no income tax was provided for this income. 
 
The loss from discontinued operations decreased by $3.7 million in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 primarily due to significant losses and impairments associated with discontinued operations incurred 
and taken in fiscal 2004 related to store closures. During fiscal 2005, impairments and losses associated with discontinued operations were offset by gains recognized on the sale of related properties.  
 
Fiscal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003 
Sales increased $6.1 million, or 2.1%, in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. This increase was offset by a $1.8 million decrease in sales related to five stores closed prior to the adoption of the business 
plan, which were not reclassified as discontinued operations. Despite store closures and the effects of increased competition in the marketplace, sales performance has improved. Promotions, new 
combination meals, and improved product and service execution have all contributed to this overall increase in sales. 
 
Cost of food increased $1.0 million, or 1.3%, principally due to the increase in sales in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. Upward pressure on beef pricing due to lower production numbers, reduced cattle 
weights, and an overall higher demand has negatively impacted food cost. Despite general commodity increases in food pricing, specifically related to the beef and dairy markets, food costs have declined 
slightly. As a percentage of sales, cost of food was 26.8% in fiscal 2004 compared to 27.1% in fiscal 2003. Management's discipline in the utilization of monthly budgeting and protein tracking tools in 
combination with various promotional offerings have assisted in reducing food costs. More specifically, food costs have declined in a higher commodity climate due to improved execution at each 
location in combination with carefully selected entree offerings for promotions which overall have very attractive cost structures. 
 
Payroll and related costs decreased $1.7 million, or 1.5%, in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. As a percentage of sales, payroll and related costs were 37.9% in fiscal 2004 compared to 39.3% in fiscal 
2003. The decrease was due to continued improvements made in labor deployment and efficiency as a result of various Company initiatives to better manage labor costs, offset by an increase in estimated 
workers' compensation costs. 
 
Other operating expenses increased $4.1 million, or 7.4%, in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. As a percentage of sales, other operating expenses increased 1.0%. The increase was primarily due to 
increased advertising expense resulting from the launch of the Company's new marketing campaign, featuring television advertising. The new  
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marketing campaign led to an increase in marketing costs. Higher cost of insurance coverage and related premiums also contributed to the increase in other operating expenses. These increases were 
primarily offset by a reduction in property tax expense due to store closures and related property sales. 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $945,000, or 5.5%, in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 due to fewer depreciable properties resulting from impairments and property sales. 
 
Due to the current-year accrual of voluntary severance costs in relation to the relocation of the corporate offices from San Antonio, Texas, to Houston, Texas, voluntary severance costs increased by 
$860,000. See Note 6 “Current Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. 
 
General and administrative expenses decreased $3.6 million, or 15.2%, in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. This decrease was due to fewer regional management positions as a result of store closures. It 
is also a result of lower professional and consulting services fees associated with a fixed-asset cost-segregation study on tax depreciation and consulting fees related to the business plan, both of which 
occurred fiscal 2003. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses were 6.6% in fiscal 2004 compared to 8.0% in fiscal 2003. 
  
The provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net decreased by $762,000 primarily due to a gain realized on the sale of a property which had been previously impaired, 
coupled with significant impairment charges incurred in the prior year. Fiscal 2004’s provision included write-downs to currently operating restaurants of $900,000 offset by a gain of $500,000 related to 
one property sale. 
 
Interest expense increased $484,000, or 6.4%, due to the accelerated amortization of the subordinated debt discount resulting from the amended subordinated note agreements, coupled with an increase in 
the effective interest rate on outstanding debt prior to the debt refinancing in June 2004. Subsequent to the debt refinancing, interest expense has declined principally due to lower amortization of the 
discount on the restructured subordinated debt, coupled with the effect of a lower senior debt balance. 
 
Other income decreased $4.4 million primarily due to gains on sales of assets recognized in the prior year, which reflected the sale of five previously closed stores. These gains were partially offset by a 
loan commitment fee expensed in fiscal 2003. The Company owns several long-lived assets that are classified as “held for sale” as a result of disposal activities that were initiated prior to the initial 
application of SFAS 144. Accordingly, gains and losses realized on the sales of these assets are classified as other income, net, in compliance with SFAS 121, under the transition guidance provided in 
Paragraph 51 of SFAS 144. 
 
For fiscal 2004, the Company recognized a $2.9 million tax benefit related to a reduction in the income tax valuation allowance triggered by the establishment of a deferred tax liability for the modification of 
the beneficial conversion feature on its convertible subordinated debt. A $1.4 million tax benefit was recognized in fiscal 2003 as tax benefits associated with the Company’s operating losses were partially 
offset by the establishment of an income tax valuation allowance against the Company’s deferred tax assets. 
 
The loss from discontinued operations decreased by $23.0 million principally due to numerous impairment charges incurred in the prior year on various locations which were closed as a part of the 
Company's business plan offset by ongoing periodic property maintenance costs incurred until the properties are sold. 
 
EBITDA 
The Company's operating performance is evaluated using several measures. One of those measures, EBITDA, is a non-GAAP financial measure that is derived from the Income (Loss) From Operations, 
which is a GAAP measurement. EBITDA has historically been used by the Company's lenders to measure compliance with certain financial debt covenants. The Company's Revolving Credit Facility 
generally defines EBITDA as the consolidated income (loss) from operations set forth in the Company's consolidated statements of operations before depreciation, amortization, other noncash expenses, 
interest expense, taxes, noncash income and extraordinary gains or losses, and other nonrecurring items of income or expense as approved by the required lenders. EBITDA is the denominator used in 
determining all of the financial covenant ratios that are measured against predefined limits for compliance under the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility. (See “Debt,” Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements). Noncompliance with any of the financial covenants would constitute an event of default under the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility, requiring the Company to obtain 
replacement financing to repay amounts owed under these agreements and to meet future working capital requirements. Management believes that such replacement financing would be available and that 
the cost of such financing would not have a significant effect on the Company’s liquidity or results of operations. 
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The Company believes that EBITDA provides a meaningful measure of liquidity, providing additional information regarding the Company’s cash earnings from ongoing operations and the Company’s 
ability to service its long-term debt and other fixed obligations. 
 
EBITDA increased by $8.4 million from fiscal 2004 to 2005 compared to an increase of $5.6 million from fiscal 2003 to 2004. These net changes were due to various reasons noted above. Prior year amounts 
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 
 
The following table reconciles the Company’s non-GAAP financial measure, EBITDA, with Income from Operations, prepared in accordance with GAAP. 
 

As noted previously, prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation, including the applicable reclassifications of store activity discontinued in accordance with the 
implementation of the business plan. While the Company and many in the financial community consider EBITDA to be an important measure of operating performance, it should be considered in addition 
to, but not as a substitute for or superior to, other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, such as operating income and net income. 
In addition, the Company's definition of EBITDA is not necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Working Capital 
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $522,000 and short-term investments decreased by $617,000 from the end of the prior fiscal year to August 31, 2005, primarily due to payments made to reduce the 
Company’s debt.  
 
The Company had a working capital deficit of $26.2 million as of August 31, 2005, compared to $24.0 million as of August 25, 2004. The decrease was primarily attributable to the use of cash, as the 
Company continued to pay down its debt. The Company's working capital requirements are expected to be met through cash flows from operations and the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
Capital expenditures for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, were $10.1 million. Consistent with prior fiscal years, the Company used most of its capital funds to maintain its investment in existing 
operating units. The Company again expects to be able to fund all capital expenditures in fiscal 2006 using cash flows from operations and the Revolving Credit Facility. Under the Company’s new credit 
facility, $25.0 million plus a limited unused prior-year carryover amount, subject to certain terms, are available for funding capital expenditures in fiscal 2006. The Company expects to spend approximately 
$16 million to $18 million on such capital expenditures in fiscal 2006. 
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    Fiscal Year Ended  

 
 

August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands)  
               
Income from operations   $ 19,753  $ 8,238    1,142 

Plus excluded items:                 
(Reversal of) provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net     (632)   413    1,175 
Relocation and voluntary severance costs     669    860    - 
Depreciation and amortization     15,054    16,259    17,204 
Noncash executive compensation expense     -    679    1,310 

EBITDA   $ 34,844  $ 26,449  $ 20,831 
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DEBT 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
On August 31, 2005, Luby’s, Inc. entered into an amended and restated, $45.0 million unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) among Luby’s, Inc. and a syndicate of three 
independent banks. The Revolving Credit Facility may, subject to certain terms and conditions, be increased by an additional $15.0 million for a total facility size of $60.0 million. The Revolving Credit 
Facility allows for up to $10.0 million of the available credit to be extended in the form of letters of credit. The Revolving Credit Facility terminates on, and all amounts owing thereunder must be repaid on, 
August 31, 2008. 
 
At any time throughout the term of the loan, the Company has the option to elect one of two bases of interest rates. One interest rate option is the greater of (a) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.5%, 
or (b) prime, plus, in either case, an applicable spread that ranges from 0% to 0.25% per annum. The other interest rate option is LIBOR (London InterBank Offered Rate) plus an applicable spread that 
ranges from 1.00% to 1.75% per annum. The applicable spread under each option is dependent upon certain measures of the Company’s financial performance at the time of election. 
 
The Company also pays a quarterly commitment fee based on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility, which is also dependent upon the Company’s financial performance, ranging from 0.25% 
to 0.35% per annum. The Company also is obligated to pay certain fees in respect of any letters of credit issued as well as an administrative fee to the lender acting as administrative agent. Finally, the 
Company was obligated to pay the lenders a one-time fee in connection with the closing of the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary covenants and restrictions on the Company’s ability to engage in certain activities, including financial performance covenants and limitations on capital 
expenditures, asset sales and acquisitions, and contains customary events of default. As of November 7, 2005, the Company was in full compliance with all covenants. 
 
All amounts owed by Luby’s, Inc. under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed by its subsidiaries. 
 
The Company primarily used proceeds received on the sale of properties, operating cash flows, short-term investments and the new facility to pay off its prior term loan and prior line of credit. As of 
November 7, 2005, the Company had total debt of $12.5 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility.  
 
Additionally, as of August 31, 2005, the Company had approximately $1.7 million committed under letters of credit through a separate arrangement. 
 
Conversion of Subordinated Notes 
On August 31, 2005, Christopher J. Pappas, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Office, and Harris J. Pappas, the Company’s Chief Operating Officer, each voluntarily converted all of the 
convertible senior subordinated notes they held into common stock of the Company. Each of them converted $5.0 million principal amount of convertible senior subordinated notes at a conversion price 
of $3.10 per share into 1,612,903 shares of common stock of the Company. In connection with this conversion, the Company recognized a one time non-cash charge of approximately $8.0 million 
representing the write-off of the unamortized portion of the discount associated with the conversion feature of the convertible senior subordinated notes. The shares issued pursuant to the conversion 
were treasury shares that had previously been reserved for such a conversion.  
 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

 
Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements 
The Company has no off-balance-sheet structured financing arrangements.  
 
Pending Claims 
Three wage and hour investigations by the U.S. Department of Labor related to the application of wait staff tip pool sums have recently been consolidated in the Houston district. The Company has not 
yet received sufficient data to determine the financial impact to the Company, if any, or the probable outcome of the matter. As with all such matters, the Company intends to vigorously defend its 
position. 
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The Company is presently, and from time to time becomes, subject to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of any pending legal 
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations or consolidated financial position. 
 
Surety Bonds 
At August 31, 2005, surety bonds in the amount of $5.0 million have been issued as security for the payment of insurance obligations classified as accrued expenses and other liabilities on the balance 
sheet.  
 
Contractual Obligations 
At August 31, 2005, the Company had contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as described below: 
 

 
 

 

 

 
In addition to the commitments represented in the above tables, the Company enters into a number of cancelable and noncancelable commitments during the year. Typically, these commitments are for 
less than a year in duration and are generally focused on food inventory. The Company does not maintain any long-term or exclusive commitments or arrangements to purchase products from any single 
supplier. Substantially all of the Company's product purchase commitments are cancelable up to 30 days prior to the vendor's scheduled shipment date.  
 
Long-term liabilities reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements as of August 31, 2005, included deferred income taxes ($5.0 million), note payable ($28,000), amounts accrued for benefit 
payments under the Company's supplemental executive retirement plan ($337,000) and deferred compensation agreements ($304,000), accrued insurance reserves ($3.1 million), deferred rent liabilities ($4.1 
million) and reserves for restaurant closings ($14,000). 
 
The Company is also contractually obligated to the chief executive officer and the chief operating officer pursuant to employment agreements. See the section entitled “Affiliations and Related Parties -
Related Parties” for further information. 
 
AFFILIATIONS AND RELATED PARTIES 
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    Payments due by Period  

Contractual Obligations
 

Total  
Less than

1 Year   1-3 Years   3-5 Years  
After

5 Years  
    (In thousands)  
                       
Long-term debt obligations   $ 13,500  $ -  $ 13,500  $ -  $ - 
Capital lease obligations     -    -    -    -    - 
Operating lease obligations (a)     37,651    4,203    7,933    6,964    18,451 
Purchase obligations     -    -    -    -    - 
Other long-term obligations     -    -    -    -    - 
Total   $ 51,151  $ 4,203  $ 21,433  $ 6,964  $ 18,451 

    Amount of Commitment by Expiration Period  

Other Commercial Commitments
 

Total  
Fiscal Year

2005  
Fiscal Years

2006-2007  
Fiscal Years
2008-2009   Thereafter  

    (In thousands)  
                       
Letters of credit   $ 1,659  $ 1,659  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Surety bonds (b)     4,997    -    -    -    4,997 
Total   $ 6,656  $ 1,659  $ -  $ -  $ 4,997 

(a) Operating lease obligations contain rent escalations and renewal options ranging from five to thirty years.

(b) Surety bonds serve as a means of collateral for certain prior year workers' compensation policies. These surety bonds have an effective date of June 1, 2002, and remain in full force and effect until 
cancelled. The Company expects to convert the surety bonds to letters of credit early in fiscal 2006. 
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Affiliations 
The Company entered into an Affiliate Services Agreement effective August 31, 2001, with two companies, Pappas Partners, L.P. and Pappas Restaurants, Inc., which are restaurant entities owned by 
Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas, the Company’s CEO and COO, respectively. That agreement was amended on July 23, 2002, to limit the scope of expenditures therein to professional and 
consulting services because there had been a significant decline in the use of professional and consulting services from Pappas entities. 
 
Additionally, on July 23, 2002, the Company entered into a Master Sales Agreement with the same Pappas entities. Through this agreement, the Company contractually separated the design and 
fabrication of equipment and furnishings from the Affiliate Services Agreement. The Master Sales Agreement covers the costs incurred for modifications to existing equipment, as well as custom 
fabrication, including stainless steel stoves, shelving, rolling carts, and chef tables. These items are custom-designed and built to fit the designated kitchens and are also engineered to give a longer 
service life than comparably manufactured equipment. 
 
The pricing of equipment, repair, and maintenance is set and evaluated periodically and is considered by management to be primarily at or below market for comparable goods and services. To assist in 
periodically monitoring pricing of the transactions associated with the Master Sales Agreement and the Affiliate Services Agreement, the Finance and Audit Committee of the Company's Board of 
Directors has periodically in the past used independent valuation consultants. 
 
As part of the affiliation with the Pappas entities, the Company leases a facility, the Houston Service Center, in which Luby's has installed a centralized restaurant service center to support field 
operations. The building at this location has 22,253 square feet of warehouse space and 5,664 square feet of office space. It is leased from the Pappas entities by the Company at an approximate monthly 
rate of $0.24 per square foot. From this center, Luby's repair and service teams are dispatched to the Company's restaurants when facility or equipment maintenance and servicing are needed. The facility 
is also used for repair and storage of new and used equipment. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease was approximately $88,000, $82,000, and $79,000 for fiscal 2005, 2004, 
and 2003, respectively. 
 
The Company previously leased a location from an unrelated third party. That location is used to house increased equipment inventories due to store closures under the business plan. The Company 
considered it more prudent to lease this location rather than to pursue purchasing a storage facility, as its strategy is to focus its capital expenditures on its operating restaurants. In a separate 
transaction, the third-party property owner sold the location to the Pappas entities during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, with the Pappas entities becoming the Company's landlord for that location 
effective August 1, 2003. The storage site complements the Houston Service Center with approximately 27,000 square feet of warehouse space at an approximate monthly rate of $0.21 per square foot. The 
amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease was approximately $72,000 and $69,000 for fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively 
 
In another separate contract, pursuant to the terms of a ground lease dated March 25, 1994, the Company paid rent to PHCG Investments for a Luby's restaurant the Company operated in Dallas, Texas, 
until that location was closed early in the third quarter of fiscal 2003. Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas are general partners of PHCG Investments. Preceding the store's closure, the Company 
entered into a lease termination agreement with a third party unaffiliated with the Pappas entities. That agreement severed the Company's interest in the PHCG property in exchange for a payment of cash 
to the Company. At that time, the Company recognized a gain of $735,000 as “Other Income, Net,” which represented the excess of the cash received over the carrying amount of the Company’s 
investment in the related assets.  The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease before its termination was approximately $42,000 in fiscal 2003. No costs were incurred under this 
lease in fiscal 2004 or 2005. 
 
Late in the third quarter of fiscal 2004, Christopher and Harris Pappas became partners in a limited partnership which purchased a retail strip center in Houston, Texas. Messrs. Pappas own a 50% limited 
partnership interest and a 50% general partnership interest in the limited partnership. One of the Company's restaurants has rented approximately 7% of the space in that center since July 1969. No 
changes were made to the Company's lease terms as a result of the transfer of ownership of the center to the new partnership. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease was 
approximately $167,000 and $56,000 in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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Affiliated rents paid for the Houston Service Center, the separate storage facility, the Dallas property, and the Houston property leases combined represented 8.4%, 5.6%, and 3.7% of total rents for 
continuing operations for fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
 
The following compares current and prior fiscal year-to-date charges incurred under the Master Sales Agreement, the Affiliate Services Agreement, and affiliated property leases to the Company's total 
capital expenditures, as well as relative general and administrative expenses and occupancy and other operating expenses included in continuing operations: 
 

 
 
Christopher J. Pappas, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, is a member of the Board of Directors of Amegy Bank, National Association, which is a lender under, and Documentation 
Agent of, the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
Related Parties 
In June 2004, new two-year employment contracts were finalized for Christopher and Harris Pappas. As in the past four years, they will both continue to devote their primary time and business efforts to 
Luby's, while maintaining their roles at Pappas Restaurants, Inc. 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 
 
Our accounting policies are described in Note 1, “Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies,” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Preparation of the financial statements requires us to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. We believe the following are the Company’s critical accounting policies due to the 
significant, subjective and complex judgments and estimates used when preparing our consolidated financial statements. We regularly review our assumptions and estimates with the Finance and Audit 
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Company records the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and  
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    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands)  
AFFILIATED COSTS INCURRED:              

General and administrative expenses - professional and other costs   $ 5  $ 1  $ - 
Capital expenditures - custom-fabricated and refurbished equipment     176    113    174 
Other operating expenses, including property leases     345    170    136 
Total   $ 526  $ 284  $ 310 

RELATIVE TOTAL COMPANY COSTS:                 
General and administrative expenses   $ 20,750  $ 19,748  $ 23,301 
Capital expenditures     10,058    8,921    9,057 
Other operating expenses     64,796    59,447    55,342 
Total   $ 95,604  $ 88,116  $ 87,700 

AFFILIATED COSTS INCURRED AS A PERCENTAGE OF RELATIVE TOTAL COMPANY COSTS                 
Fiscal year to date     0. 55%   0.32%   0.35%

Inception to date     0.34%          
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liabilities and amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as well as operating loss and tax credit carrybacks and carryforwards. The Company periodically reviews the 
recoverability of tax assets recorded on the balance sheet and provides valuation allowances as management deems necessary. Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that 
might be challenged upon an audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these 
jurisdictions. In management's opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years. Historically, the Company has been periodically reviewed by the Internal Revenue Service 
(“IRS”). The Company is currently under review for the 2003, 2002, 2001, and 2000 fiscal years. The IRS review may possibly result in a reduction of the cumulative net operating losses ($10.2 million at 
August 31, 2005) that are currently being carried forward to offset future taxable income. 
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company estimates future 
cash flows expected to result from the use and possible disposition of the asset and will recognize an impairment loss when the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash flows is less than the 
carrying amounts of such assets. The estimates of future cash flows, based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections, require management's subjective judgments. The span of time for 
which future cash flows are estimated is often lengthy, which increases the sensitivity to assumptions made. Depending on the assumptions and estimates used, the estimated future cash flows projected 
in the evaluation of long-lived assets can vary within a wide range of outcomes. The Company considers the likelihood of possible outcomes in determining the best estimate of future cash flows. The 
measurement for such an impairment loss is then based on the fair value of the asset as determined by discounted cash flows or appraisals, if available. 
 
Property Held for Sale  
The Company also periodically reviews long-lived assets against its plans to retain or ultimately dispose of properties. If the Company decides to dispose of a property, it will be moved to property held 
for sale and actively marketed. Property held for sale is recorded at amounts not in excess of what management currently expects to receive upon sale, less costs of disposal. The Company routinely 
monitors the estimated value of property held for sale and records adjustments to these values as required. The Company periodically measures and analyzes its estimates against third-party appraisals.  
 
Insurance and Claims 
The Company self-insures a significant portion of risks and associated liabilities under its employee injury, workers compensation and general liability programs. The Company maintains insurance 
coverage with third party carriers to limit its per-occurrence claim exposure. Accrued liabilities have been recorded based upon analysis of historical data and actuarial estimates, and is reviewed by the 
Company on a quarterly basis to ensure that the liability is appropriate. 
 
Actual workers’ compensation and employee injury claims expense may differ from estimated loss provisions. The company cannot make any assurances as to the ultimate level of claims under the in-
house safety program or whether declines in incidence of claims as well as claims costs experiences or reductions in reserve requirements under the program will continue in future periods. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation 
The Company accounts for its employee stock compensation plans using the intrinsic-value method of accounting set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees,” and the related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant 
over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. 
 
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS 148, requires pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share for companies not adopting its fair value 
accounting method for stock-based employee compensation. The pro forma disclosures presented in Note 12 - Employee Benefit Plans and Agreements use the fair value method of SFAS 123 to measure 
compensation expense for stock-based employee compensation plans. 
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The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Share-Based Payments (Revised 2004)”, effective September 1, 2005. Among other things, SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for stock-
based compensation using APB 25 and requires that such transactions be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement on their fair values on the date of the grant. See Note 12 - Employee 
Benefit Plans and Agreements - for additional information. 
  
In November 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF”) reached a consensus on EITF 03-13, “Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FABS Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether to Report 
Discontinued Operations,” which provides guidance on how to evaluate the discontinued operations criteria. The consensus should be applied in fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2004. The 
Company plans to apply the consensus effective fiscal year 2006. The application is not expected to have a significant effect on reporting of discontinued operations. 
  
In October 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 13-1 (“FSP 13-1”), which addresses the accounting for rental costs associated with building and ground operating leases that are incurred 
during a construction period. The FASB decided that such rental costs incurred during a construction period shall be recognized as rental expense. A lessee shall cease capitalizing rental costs as of the 
effective date of FSP 13-1 for operating lease arrangements entered into prior to the effective date of FSP 13-1. The guidance in FSP 13-1 shall be applied to the first reporting period beginning after 
December 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements or interim financial statements that have not yet been issued. Because it has been the Company’s practice to charge rental costs 
during construction periods to expense, the adoption of FSP 13-1 will not have an impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
In May 2005 the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”. Statement 154 replaces APB No. 20, “Accounting Changes”, and FASB Statement No. 3, 
“Reporting Changes in Interim Financial Statements”. FASB No. 154 changes the accounting for, and reporting of, a change in accounting principle. FASB No. 154 requires retrospective application to 
prior period’s financial statements of voluntary changes in accounting principle and changes required by new accounting standards when the standard does not include specific transition provisions, 
unless it is impractical to do so. FASB No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.  
 
INFLATION 
 
The Company's policy is to maintain stable menu prices without regard to seasonal variations in food costs. General increases in costs of food, wages, supplies, transportation, and services make it 
necessary for the Company to increase its menu prices from time to time. To the extent prevailing market conditions allow, the Company intends to adjust menu prices to maintain profit margins.  
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements that are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements contained in this Form 10-K, other than statements of historical facts, are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of these provisions, 
including any statements regarding: 
 

 
In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “outlook,” “may,” “should,” “will,” and “would” or 
similar words. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by the Company’s management in light of their experience and perception of historical trends, current 
conditions, expected future developments and other factors  
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  ·  the Company’s future operating results; 

  ·  the Company’s future capital expenditures; 

  ·  reducing the Company’s debt, including the Company’s liquidity and the sources and availability of funds to reduce its debt; 

  ·  future sales of the Company’s assets and the gains or losses that the Company may recognize as a result of any such sale; and 

  ·  the Company’s continued compliance with the terms of its Revolving Credit Facility. 
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they believe are relevant. Although management believes that their assumptions are reasonable based on information currently available, those assumptions are subject to significant risks and 
uncertainties, many of which are outside of the Company’s control. The following factors, as well as the factors set forth in Item 1A of this Form 10-K and any other cautionary language in this Form 10-K, 
provide examples of risks, uncertainties, and events that may cause the Company’s financial and operational results to differ materially from the expectations described in the Company’s forward-looking 
statements: 
 

 
Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of this Form 10-K, and the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 
of new information, future events or otherwise. You should be aware that the occurrence of the events described above and elsewhere in this Form 10-K could have material adverse effect on the 
Company’s business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 
 

 
The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates affecting its variable-rate debt. As of August 31, 2005, $13.5 million, the total amount of debt subject to interest rate fluctuations, was 
outstanding under its Revolving Credit Facility. Assuming a consistent level of debt, a 1% change in interest rates effective from the beginning of the year would result in an increase or decrease in 
annual interest expense of approximately $135,000.  
 
Although the Company is not currently using interest rate swaps, it has previously used and may in the future use these instruments to manage cash flow risk on a portion of its variable-rate debt. 
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  ·  general business and economic conditions; 

  ·  the impact of competition; 

  ·  the Company’s operating initiatives; 

  ·  fluctuations in the costs of commodities, including beef, poultry, seafood, dairy, cheese and produce; 

  ·  increases in utility costs, including the costs of natural gas and other energy supplies; 

  ·  changes in the availability and cost of labor; 

  ·  the seasonality of the Company’s business; 

  ·  changes in governmental regulations, including changes in minimum wages; 

  ·  the affects of inflation; 

  ·  the availability of credit; 

  ·  unfavorable publicity relating to the Company’s operations, including publicity concerning food quality, illness or other health concerns or labor relations; and  

  ·  the continued service of key management personnel. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
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Report of Management

 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f). Because of its 
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect material misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Under the supervision and with the participation of 
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2005 
based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on that evaluation, our management 
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of August 31, 2005. 
 
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2005 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public 
accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included elsewhere herein. 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

/s/Christopher J. Pappas /s/Ernest Pekmezaris 
Christopher J. Pappas Ernest Pekmezaris 
President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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LUBY'S, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended August 31, 2005, August 25, 2004 and August 27, 2003 
with Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 
 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Luby's, Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Luby's, Inc. (The “Company”) as of August 31, 2005, and August 25, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Luby's, Inc. at August 31, 2005 and August 25, 2004, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2005, the Company changed its method of accounting to recognize deferred taxes associated with the beneficial conversion feature on 
the Company’s convertible subordinated debt. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of August 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report, dated 
November 4, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 
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  /s/ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Antonio, Texas  
November 4, 2005  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Luby's, Inc. 

We have audited management’s assessment included in the accompanying Report of Management, that Luby’s, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2005, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control -Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Luby’s, Inc.’s management 
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion 
 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to 
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
In our opinion, management’s assessment that Luby’s Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO 
criteria. Also, in our opinion, Luby’s Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2005, based on the COSO criteria. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Luby’s, Inc. as of August 31, 2005 and 
August 25, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005 of Luby’s, Inc., and our 
report, dated November 4, 2005, expresses an unqualified opinion thereon.  
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  /s/ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Antonio, Texas  
November 4, 2005  
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Luby's, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 

See accompanying notes.
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August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands, except share data)  
ASSETS          
Current Assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 2,789  $ 3,311 
Short-term investments (see Note 3)     1,667    2,284 
Trade accounts and other receivables, net     151    101 
Food and supply inventories     2,215    2,092 
Prepaid expenses     1,639    1,028 
Deferred income taxes (see Note 4)     865    1,073 

Total current assets     9,326    9,889 
Property, plant, and equipment, net (see Note 5)     186,009    194,042 
Property held for sale     9,346    24,594 
Other assets     1,533    3,756 
Total assets   $ 206,214  $ 232,281 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY            
Current Liabilities:            

Accounts payable   $ 17,759  $ 16,821 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (see Note 6)     17,720    17,073 

Total current liabilities     35,479    33,894 
Credit-facility debt (see Note 8)     13,500    28,000 
Term debt (see Note 8)     -    23,470 
Convertible subordinated notes, net - related party (see Note 8)     -    2,091 
Other liabilities (see Note 7)     7,910    10,215 
Deferred income taxes (see Note 4)     5,039    5,061 

Total liabilities     61,928    102,731 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY            

Common stock, $.32 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares, issued 27,610,708 shares and 27,410,567 shares at August 31, 2005 and August 
25, 2004, respectively

    8,835    8,771 
Paid-in capital     40,032    39,070 
Retained earnings     131,023    186,480 
Less cost of treasury stock, 1,676,403 shares and 4,933,063 shares at August 31, 2005 and August 25, 2004, respectively     (35,604)   (104,771)

Total shareholders' equity     144,286    129,550 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity   $ 206,214  $ 232,281 
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Luby's, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 

See accompanying notes.
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    Year Ended  

 
 

August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27,
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands except per share data)  
               
SALES   $ 322,151  $ 297,849  $ 291,740 
COSTS AND EXPENSES:                 

Cost of food     86,280    79,923    78,921 
Payroll and related costs     115,481    112,961    114,655 
Other operating expenses     64,796    59,447    55,342 
Depreciation and amortization     15,054    16,259    17,204 
Relocation and voluntary severance costs (see Note 6)     669    860    - 
General and administrative expenses     20,750    19,748    23,301 
(Reversal of) provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net (see Note 9)     (632)   413    1,175 

      302,398    289,611    290,598 
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS     19,753    8,238    1,142 

Interest expense     (11,636)   (8,094)   (7,610)
Other income, net     574    2,689    7,069 

Income before income taxes     8,691    2,833    601 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (see Note 4)     117    (2,856)   (1,441)

Income from continuing operations     8,574    5,689    2,042 
Discontinued operations, net of taxes (see Note 9)     (5,126)   (8,811)   (31,763)

NET INCOME (LOSS)   $ 3,448  $ (3,122) $ (29,721)

Income per share from continuing operations:                 
Basic (see Note 15)   $ 0.38  $ 0.25  $ 0.09 
Assuming dilution(see Note 15)   $ 0.37  $ 0.25  $ 0.09 

Loss per share from discontinued operations:                 
Basic (see Note 15)   $ (0.23) $ (0.39) $ (1.41)
Assuming dilution (see Note 15)   $ (0.22) $ (0.39) $ (1.41)

Net income (loss) per share:                 
Basic (see Note 15)   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

Assuming dilution (see Note 15)   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

Weighted-average shares outstanding:                 
Basic     22,608    22,470    22,451 
Assuming dilution     23,455    22,679    22,532 
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Luby's, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

(In thousands)

 
See accompanying notes.
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    Common Stock               Total  
    Issued   Treasury   Paid-In   Deferred   Retained   Shareholders'  
    Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Compensation  Earnings   Equity  
Balance at August 28, 2002 (As adjusted)     27,403  $ 8,769    (4,970) $ (105,557) $ 35,697  $ (1,989) $ 219,323  $ 156,243 

Net loss for the year     -    -    -    -    -    -    (29,721)   (29,721)

Noncash stock compensation expense     -    -    -    -    -    1,310    -    1,310 
Common stock issued under nonemployee director benefit 

plans  
  -    -    23    495    (419)   -    -    76 

Balance at August 27, 2003 (As adjusted)     27,403  $ 8,769    (4,947) $ (105,062) $ 35,278  $ (679) $ 189,602  $ 127,908 
Net loss for the year     -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,122)   (3,122)

Noncash stock compensation expense     -    -    -    -    -    679    -    679 
Net change in value of beneficial conversion feature on the 

convertible subordinated notes, net of taxes
    -    -    -    -    4,045    -    -    4,045 

Common stock issued under nonemployee director benefit 
plans

    -    2    14    291    (291)   -    -    2 
Common stock issued under employee benefit plans     8    -    -    -    38    -    -    38 

Balance at August 25, 2004 (As adjusted)     27,411  $ 8,771    (4,933) $ (104,771) $ 39,070  $ -  $ 186,480  $ 129,550 
Net income for the year     -    -    -    -    -    -    3,448    3,448 
Common stock issued under nonemployee director benefit 

plans
    9    3    31    655    (179)   -    (393)   86 

Common stock issued for conversion of subordinated debt     -    -    3,226    68,512    -    -    (58,512)   10,000 
Common stock issued under employee benefit plans     191    61    -    -    1,141    -    -    1,202 

Balance at August 31, 2005     27,611  $ 8,835    (1,676) $ (35,604) $ 40,032  $ -  $ 131,023  $ 144,286 
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Luby's, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

  

See accompanying notes.
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    Year Ended  

 
 

August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27,
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands)  
               
Cash flows from operating activities:              
Net income (loss)   $ 3,448  $ (3,122) $ (29,721)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:                 
Provision for asset impairments, net of gains on property sales - discontinued operations     389    1,895    16,613 
Provision for (reversal of) asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net     (189)   727    1,821 
Depreciation and amortization - continuing operations     15,054    16,259    17,204 
Depreciation and amortization - discontinued operations     (48)   1,094    3,162 
Amortization of discount on convertible subordinated notes     7,909    2,020    1,090 
Amortization of debt issuance cost     2,345    302    - 
Gain on disposal of property held for sale     -    -    (3,222)

Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment     624    (2,154)   (3,364)

Noncash nonemployee directors' fees     86    -    76 
Reduction in the amount of income tax valuation allowance required (Note 2)     -    (2,856)   (1,441)
Noncash executive compensation expense     -    679    1,310 

Cash provided by operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities     29,618    14,844    3,528 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                 

(Increase) decrease in trade accounts and other receivables     (50)   182    (98)

(Increase) decrease in food and supply inventories     (123)   (294)   399 
Decrease in income tax receivable     -    -    7,245 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses     (611)   2,457    (1,818)

Decrease (increase) in other assets     2    408    (201)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable     938    2,292    (6,589)

Decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities     (1,347)   (2,262)   (2,183)

Increase in deferred income taxes     186    -    4,545 
Decrease in reserve for store closings     (486)   (1,163)   (210)

Net cash provided by operating activities     28,127    16,464    4,618 
Cash flows from investing activities:                 

Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments     617    -    - 
Purchases of short-term investments     -    -    (2,285)

Proceeds from disposal of property held for sale     17,684    17,068    19,178 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     -    3,585    7,813 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment     (10,058)   (8,921)   (9,057)

Net cash provided by investing activities     8,243    11,732    15,649 
Cash flows from financing activities:                 

Repayment of debt     (45,970)   (104,290)   (26,889)

Proceeds from issuance of debt     8,000    64,200    - 
Debt issuance cost     (124)   (3,920)   - 
Proceeds received on the exercise of employee stock options     1,202    41    - 

Net cash used in financing activities     (36,892)   (43,969)   (26,889)

Net decrease in cash     (522)   (15,773)   (6,622)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     3,311    19,084    25,706 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   $ 2,789  $ 3,311  $ 19,084 
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Luby's, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fiscal Years 2005, 2004 and 2003

 

 
Nature of Operations 
Luby's, Inc. is based in Houston, Texas. As of August 31, 2005, the Company owned and operated 131 restaurants, with 123 in Texas and the remainder in four other states. The Company's restaurant 
locations are convenient to shopping and business developments as well as to residential areas. Accordingly, the restaurants appeal primarily to shoppers, travelers, store and office personnel at lunch, 
and to families at dinner. 
 
Principles of Consolidation  
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Luby's, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Luby's, Inc. was restructured into a holding company on February 1, 1997, at 
which time all of the operating assets were transferred to Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership, a Texas limited partnership composed of two wholly owned, indirect corporate subsidiaries of the 
Company. All restaurant operations are conducted by the partnership. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the word “Company” as used herein includes Luby's, Inc., the partnership, and the 
consolidated corporate subsidiaries of Luby's, Inc. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments such as money market funds that have a maturity of three months or less. Amounts receivable from credit card companies are also considered 
cash equivalents because they are both short-term and highly liquid in nature and are typically converted to cash within three days of the sales transaction. 

Inventories  
The food and supply inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.  
 
Property Held for Sale  
Property held for sale is recorded at amounts not in excess of what management currently expects to receive upon sale, less costs of disposal. The Company routinely monitors the estimated value of 
property held for sale and records adjustments to these values as required. For certain assets impaired, the Company may record subsequent adjustments for increases in fair value, but not in excess of 
cumulative losses previously recognized. 
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
Impairment losses are recorded on long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less 
than the carrying amount. The Company evaluates impairments on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis and uses three or more years of negative cash flows and other market conditions as indicators of 
impairment. 
 
Debt Issuance Costs 
Debt issuance costs include costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of long-term financing agreements. These costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the respective term 
of the debt to which they specifically relate.  
 
Financial Instruments 
The estimated fair value of financial instruments held by the Company approximates the carrying value. 
 
Self-Insurance Accrued Expenses 
The Company self-insures a significant portion of expected losses under our workers' compensation, work injury, and general liability programs. Accrued liabilities have been recorded based on estimates 
of the ultimate costs to settle incurred claims, both reported and not yet reported. These recorded estimated liabilities are based on  
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies 
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judgments and independent actuarial estimates, which include the use of claim-development factors based on loss history; economic conditions; the frequency or severity of claims and claim 
development patterns; and claim reserve, management, and settlement practices.

 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from restaurant sales is recognized when food and beverage products are sold. Unearned revenues are recorded as a liability for dining cards that have been sold but not yet redeemed and are 
recorded at their expected redemption value. When dining cards are redeemed, revenue is recognized and unearned revenue is reduced. 
 
Advertising Expenses 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Management changed its strategic focus in fiscal 2004 to an increased emphasis in this area. Total advertising expense was $6.3 million, $4.1 million, and $1.1 
million in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, of which $91,000, $198,000, and $158,000, in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, related to stores included in discontinued operations and was 
reclassified accordingly.  
 
Depreciation and Amortization  
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. The Company depreciates the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements 
are amortized over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the related lease terms. Depreciation of buildings is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (generally 20 to 33 years, 
not to exceed 25 years for buildings located on leased properties). 
 
Operating Leases 
The Company leases restaurant and administrative facilities and administrative equipment under operating leases. Building lease agreements generally include rent holidays, rent escalation clauses and 
contingent rent provisions for a percentage of sales in excess of specified levels. Contingent rental expenses are recognized prior to the achievement of a specified target, provided that the achievement of 
the target is considered probable. Most of our lease agreements include renewal periods at the Company’s option. We recognize rent holiday periods and scheduled rent increases on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term beginning with the date the Company takes possession of the leased space. We record tenant improvement allowances and rent holidays as deferred rent expense on the consolidated 
statements of operations. 
 
Income Taxes 
Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of 
assets and liabilities (temporary differences) and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.  
 
Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged upon an audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In management's opinion, adequate 
provisions for income taxes have been made for all years. Historically, the Company has been periodically reviewed by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company is currently under review for the 2003, 
2002, 2001, and 2000 fiscal years. 
 
Discontinued Operations 
In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The Company was required to adopt 
SFAS No. 144 as of August 29, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 extended the reporting of discontinued operations to all components of an entity from a segment of an entity. Beginning in fiscal 2003, 
all qualifying disposal plans were reported as discontinued operations, and operations related to those disposals in prior years were reclassified as required. The results of disposal plans prior to the 
adoption continue to be included in continuing operations for all periods presented. 
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Stock-Based Compensation 
Employee compensation expense under the stock option plans is reported only if options are granted below market price at grant date in accordance with the intrinsic value method of Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations by accounting standards setters. When the exercise price of the Company’s employee 
stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense is recognized on options granted. Compensation expense for non-vested stock awards is 
based on the market price of the stock on the date of grant and is recognized ratably over the service period of the award. 
 
Earnings Per Share 
The Company presents basic income (loss) per common share and diluted loss per common share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic income (loss) per share is computed by 
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during each period presented. In fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003, dilutive shares had a minimal effect on income (loss) 
per share.  
 
Accounting Periods 
The Company's fiscal year generally consists of 13 four-week periods ending on the last Wednesday in August. Fiscal year 2005 consists of 12 four-week periods and one five-week period. 
 
Use of Estimates 
In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates.  
 
Reclassifications 
 
Store management compensation has been reclassified from “Other Operating Expenses” to “Payroll and Related Costs” to provide comparability to financial results reported by our peers in the industry. 
All prior period results reported have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 
 
Below is a summary of the reclassified expenses: 
 

 
The Company's business plan, as approved in fiscal 2003, called for the closure of approximately 50 locations. In accordance with the plan, the entire fiscal activity of the applicable stores closed after the 
inception of the plan have been reclassified to discontinued operations. For comparison purposes, prior fiscal years results related to these same locations have also been reclassified to discontinued 
operations. Certain other reclassifications of prior period results have been made to conform to the current year presentation. 
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    Fiscal Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands)  
Payroll and related costs              

Payroll and related costs (previous classification)   $ 81,759  $ 82,163  $ 83,676 
Manager compensation reclassification     33,722    30,798    30,979 
Payroll and related costs (as reported)   $ 115,481  $ 112,961  $ 114,655 

Other operating expenses                 
Other operating expenses (previous classification)   $ 98,518  $ 90,245  $ 86,321 
Manager compensation reclassification     (33,722)   (30,798)   (30,979)

Other operating expenses (as reported)   $ 64,796  $ 59,447  $ 55,342 
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New Accounting Pronouncements 
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS 148, requires pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share for companies not adopting its fair value 
accounting method for stock-based employee compensation. The pro forma disclosures presented in Note 12 - Employee Benefit Plans and Agreements use the fair value method of SFAS 123 to measure 
compensation expense for stock-based employee compensation plans. 
  
The Company expects to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Share-Based Payments (Revised 2004)”, on September 1, 2005. Among other things, SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for 
stock-based compensation using APB 25 and requires that such transactions be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement at their fair values on the date of the grant. See Note 12 -
Employee Benefit Plans and Agreements for additional information. 
  
In November 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on EITF 03-13, “Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FABS Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether to Report 
Discontinued Operations,” which provides guidance on how to evaluate the discontinued operations criteria. The consensus should be applied in fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2004. The 
Company plans to apply the consensus effective fiscal year 2006. The application is not expected to have a significant effect on reporting of discontinued operations. 
  
In October 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 13-1 (“FSP 13-1”), which addresses the accounting for rental costs associated with building and ground operating leases that are 
incurred during a construction period. The FASB decided that such rental costs incurred during a construction period shall be recognized as rental expense. A lessee should cease capitalizing rental costs 
as of the effective date of ESP 13-1. The guidance in FSP 13-1 shall be applied to the first reporting period beginning after December 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements or interim 
financial statements that have not yet been issued. A lessee shall cease capitalizing rental costs as of the effective date of FSP 13-1 for operating lease arrangements entered into prior to the effective date 
of FSP 13-1. Because it has been the Company’s practice to charge rental cost incurred during construction periods to expense, the adoption of FSP 13-1 will not have an impact on the Company’s 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
In May 2005 the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. Statement 154 replaces APB No. 20, Accounting Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting 
Changes in Interim Financial Statements. FASB No. 154 changes the accounting for, and reporting of, a change in accounting principle. FASB No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior period’s 
financial statements of voluntary changes in accounting principle and changes required by new accounting standards when the standard does not include specific transition provisions, unless it is 
impractical to do so. FASB No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.  
 

 
In September 2005, the FASB approved EITF Issue 05-8, “Income Tax Consequences of Issuing Convertible Debt with a Beneficial Conversion Feature” (“EIFT 05-8”). EITF 05-8 provides (i) that the 
recognition of a beneficial conversion feature creates a difference between the book basis and tax basis (“basis difference”) of a convertible debt instrument, (ii) that basis difference is a temporary 
difference for which a deferred tax liability should be recorded and (iii) the effect of recognizing the deferred tax liability should be charged to equity in accordance with SFAS No. 109. EITF 05-8 is 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2005, and must be adopted through retrospective application to all periods presented, with early adoption permitted. As a result, 
EITF 05-8 applies to debt instruments that were converted or extinguished in prior periods as well as to those currently outstanding. The Company has adopted EITF 05-8 and applied it retrospectively to 
all periods presented herein and all prior periods. Accordingly, effective fiscal year 2001, a deferred tax liability has been recorded, offset by a charge to paid-in capital, for the temporary difference created 
by the beneficial conversion feature recognized in connection with the Company’s convertible subordinated debt. The tax effect of subsequent changes to the beneficial conversion feature have also 
been recorded to the deferred tax liability, with offsetting entries to paid-in capital or income tax expense/benefit, as appropriate. 
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The retrospective adoption of EITF 05-8 had no impact on periods prior to fiscal 2001. Adjustments for fiscal years 2002 and 2001 included income tax benefits of approximately $169,000 and $28,000, 
respectively, with commensurate reductions in losses from continuing operations and net losses reported for those years. Tax benefits of $2.9 million in fiscal 2004 and $1.4 million in fiscal 2003 were 
realized as a result of reductions in our income tax valuation allowance by the equivalent amount that our deferred tax liabilities increased as a result of the adoption of EITF 05-8. There were no 
adjustments to the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal year 2005 pertaining to the application of the new standard. Following is a summary of the effects of the adjustments on the 
consolidated statements of operations for the two fiscal years ended August 25, 2004 (in thousands): 
 

 
 

 
Following is a summary of the effects of these adjustments on the consolidated balance sheet as of August 25, 2004 (in thousands): 
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Fiscal Year Ended August 25, 2004   Previously
Reported   Adjustments   As adjusted  

               
Income before income taxes   $ 2,833  $ -  $ 2,833 
Benefit for income taxes     -    (2,856)   (2,856)

Income from continuing operations     2,833    2,856    5,689 
Discontinued operations, net of taxes     (8,811)   -    (8,811)

Net loss     (5,978)   2,856    (3,122)

Income per share from continuing operations:                 
Basic     0.13    0.12    0.25 
Assuming dilution     0.12    0.13    0.25 

Loss per share from discontinued operations:                 
Basic     (0.39)   -    (0.39)

Assuming dilution     (0.39)   -    (0.39)

Net loss per share:                 
Basic     (0.27)   0.13    (0.14)

Assuming dilution     (0.26)   0.12    (0.14)

Fiscal Year Ended August 27, 2003   Previously
Reported   Adjustments   As adjusted  

               
Income before income taxes   $ 601  $ -  $ 601 
Benefit for income taxes     -    (1,441)   (1,441)

Income from continuing operations     601    1,441    2,042 
Discontinued operations, net of taxes     (31,763)   -    (31,763)

Net loss     (31,162)   1,441    (29,721)

Income per share from continuing operations:                 
Basic     0.03    0.06    0.09 
Assuming dilution     0.03    0.06    0.09 

Loss per share from discontinued operations:                 
Basic     (1.41)   -    (1.41)

Assuming dilution     (1.41)   -    (1.41)

Net loss per share:                 
Basic     (1.39)   0.07    (1.32)

Assuming dilution   $ (1.39) $ 0.07  $ (1.32)
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The Company manages its cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments jointly in order to internally fund operating needs. Short-term investments as of August 31, 2005, and August 25, 2004, 
consisted primarily of held-to-maturity time deposits, which were pledged as collateral for four separate letters of credit. During 2005, approximately $617,000 was drawn against one of the letters of credit. 

 
The Company's combined cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments balance declined from $5.6 million as of August 25, 2004, to $4.5 million as of August 31, 2005. The decline was primarily 
attributed to an approximately $38.0 million net debt paydown in fiscal 2005 and purchases of assets of approximately $10.1 million, offset by proceeds from the sale of assets of closed stores of 
approximately $17.7 million (including $4.1 million in net proceeds from the sale of the San Antonio, Texas corporate office) and cash flows from operations. 
 

 
The following is a summarization of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of the current and prior fiscal year-end: 
 

 
The following table details the categories of income tax assets and liabilities resulting from the cumulative tax effects of temporary differences as of the end of each period presented: 
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August 25, 2004   Previously
Reported   Adjustments   As adjusted  

               
Total assets   $ 232,281  $ -  $ 232,281 
Total liabilities     102,731    -    102,731 
Paid-in capital     43,564    (4,494)   39,070 
Retained earnings     181,986    4,494    186,480 
Total shareholders’ equity     129,550    -    129,550 
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity   $ 232,281  $ -  $ 232,281 

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments 

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

    (In thousands)  
             
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 2,789  $ 3,311 
Short-term investments     1,667    2,284 
Total cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments   $ 4,456  $ 5,595 

Note 4. Income Taxes 

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

    (In thousands)  
           
Deferred long-term income tax liability    $ (5,039) $ (5,061)
Plus: Deferred short-term income tax asset     865    1,073 
Net deferred income tax liability   $ (4,174) $ (3,988)
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Relative only to continuing operations, the reconciliation of the expense (benefit) for income taxes to the expected income tax expense (benefit), computed using the statutory tax rate, was as follows:  
  

 
For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, including both continuing and discontinued operations, the Company generated gross taxable income of approximately $6.2 million which will be offset by net 
operating loss carryforwards from prior years. However, the Company will incur an Alternative Minimum Tax (“AMT”) liability of approximately $117,000 for fiscal year 2005. The AMT liability may be 
used as a credit in the future if regular income tax exceeds future AMT. 
 
For the 2004 fiscal year, including both continuing and discontinued operations, the Company generated net operating losses of approximately $4.0 million, which will fully expire in 2024 if not utilized. 
Initial estimates of the losses for 2004 were approximately $14.1 million and were adjusted with the filing of the final tax return for that period. 
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August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands)  
Deferred income tax assets:          

Workers' compensation, employee injury, and general liability claims   $ 2,085  $ 2,552 
Deferred compensation     2,277    2,302 
Net operating losses     10,235    16,032 
General business credits     940    529 
Other     1,345    1,557 

Subtotal     16,882    22,972 
Valuation allowance     (13,577)   (15,664)

Total deferred income tax assets     3,305    7,308 
Deferred income tax liabilities:            

Depreciation and amortization     5,406    6,657 
Discount on subordinated debt     -    2,768 
Other     2,073    1,871 

Total deferred income tax liabilities     7,479    11,296 
Net deferred income tax liability   $ (4,174) $ (3,988)

   
2005  

2004
(As adjusted)  

2003
(As adjusted)  

    Amount   %   Amount   %   Amount   %  
    (In thousands and as a percent of pretax income)  
                           
Income tax expense from continuing operations at the 

federal rate
 

$ 3,042    35.0% $ 991    35.0% $ 210    35.0%

Permanent and other differences                                
Federal jobs tax credits     130    1.5    51    1.8    76    12.6 
Other permanent differences     (150)   (1.7)   15    0.5    11    1.8 

Alternative minimum tax     117    1.3    -    -    -    - 
Change in valuation allowance     (3,022)   (34.8)   (3,913)   (138.1)   (1,738)   (289.2)

Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations   $ 117    1.3% $ (2,856)   (100.8)% $ (1,441)   (239.8)%
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For the 2003 fiscal year, including both continuing and discontinued operations, the Company generated gross taxable operating losses of approximately $31.7 million, which will fully expire in 2023 if not 
utilized. Due to the Company’s cumulative loss carryforward position, no federal income taxes were paid in fiscal 2004 or fiscal 2003. 
 
The tax benefit of the operating losses for book purposes in fiscal years 2004 and 2003 was netted against a valuation allowance because loss carrybacks were exhausted with the fiscal 2002 tax filing and 
the future realization of loss carryforwards was uncertain. For book purposes in fiscal years after 2004, tax expense and benefits will be offset against the valuation allowance until such time as the future 
realization of loss carryforwards becomes reasonably certain. Tax benefits of $2.9 million in fiscal 2004 and $1.4 million in fiscal 2003 were realized as a result of reductions in our income tax valuation 
allowance by the equivalent amount that our deferred tax liabilities increased as a result of the adoption of EITF 05-8. 
 
The Company's federal income tax returns have been periodically reviewed by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company's 2003, 2002, 2001, and 2000 returns are currently under review. Management 
believes that adequate provisions for income taxes have been reflected in the financial statements and is not aware of any significant exposure items that have not been reflected in the financial 
statements. The IRS review may possibly result in a reduction of the cumulative net operating losses that are currently being carried forward to offset future taxable income. 
 

 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of property, plant and equipment at August 31, 2005, and August 25, 2004, together with the related estimated useful lives used in computing depreciation and 
amortization, were as follows: 
 

 

 
Current accrued expenses and other liabilities as of the current and prior fiscal year-end consisted of: 
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Note 5. Property, Plant and Equipment  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

Estimated
Useful Lives  

    (In thousands)      
Land   $ 50,791  $ 51,536    ─  
Restaurant equipment and furnishings     109,488    107,481    3 to 15 years 
Buildings     175,912    180,210    20 to 33 years 

Leasehold and leasehold improvements
 

  18,738    20,859   

Lesser of lease term 
or estimated useful 

life 
Office furniture and equipment     4,745    6,845    5 to 10 years 
Transportation equipment     405    421    5 years 
      360,079    367,352      
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization     (174,070)   (173,310)     
Property and equipment   $ 186,009  $ 194,042      

Note 6. Current Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities 

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

    (In thousands)  
           
Salaries, compensated absences, incentives, and bonuses   $ 5,115  $ 4,736 
Voluntary severance costs     86    860 
Taxes, other than income     5,584    4,074 
Accrued claims and insurance     4,616    5,979 
Rent, legal, and other     2,202    1,424 
Federal income tax payable     117    - 
    $ 17,720  $ 17,073 
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During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, Luby's announced it would consolidate all of the Company's corporate operations in one city by moving its corporate headquarters to Houston, Texas. This move 
was completed by the end of the 2004 calendar year. In conjunction with the move, the Company offered voluntary severance agreements to certain employees. In accordance with SFAS No. 88, 
“Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,” the Company recorded, in fiscal year 2004, a liability and reported in accrued 
expenses and other liabilities and recognized an expense in the Company's consolidated statements of operations of $860,000 under voluntary severance costs. The liability and related expense represent 
the cost to the Company for the voluntary severance agreements accepted by employees during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Subsequent relocation costs incurred were recognized in accordance with 
SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” and expensed as incurred. 
 
Recent favorable claims experience resulted in a significant reduction in the Company’s reserve requirements for accrued claims and insurance. The Company does not anticipate any significant 
adjustments to these reserve requirements for fiscal 2006. 
 

 
Long-term other liabilities as of the current and prior fiscal year-end consisted of: 
 

 
 

 
Previous Senior Debt 
During the mid-1990's, the Company entered into a revolving line-of-credit with a group of four banks. The line was primarily used for financing long-term objectives, including capital acquisitions and a 
stock repurchase program. These large demands of cash contributed to the capacity under that line-of-credit being fully exhausted in fiscal 2001, at which time the Company received an additional $10 
million in subordinate financing from its CEO and COO (see “Subordinate Notes” herein). 
 
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company successfully refinanced its existing senior credit facility with two new instruments. The first was a secured, three-year line of credit for $50 million. Of the 
total line, only $36.3 million was originally drawn in connection with the refinancing. This instrument was funded by a new syndicate of four independent banks.  
 
In addition to the line of credit, the Company concurrently negotiated another secured, three-year term loan for $27.9 million. The term loan was funded by a third-party financial institution not related to 
any member of the bank group that funded the line of credit. 
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Note 7. Other Long-term Liabilities 

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

    (In thousands)  
Workers compensation and general liability insurance reserve   $ 3,086  $ 3,936 
Note payable     28    28 
Deferred rent     4,141    4,712 
Deferred compensation     641    1,039 
Reserve for store closings     14    500 
    $ 7,910  $ 10,215 

Note 8. Debt 
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Primarily proceeds from property sales of under performing units, along with cash flows from operations and new financing were used to pay down debt through August 31, 2005. 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
On August 31, 2005, Luby’s, Inc. entered into an amended and restated, $45.0 million unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) among Luby’s, Inc. and a syndicate of three 
independent banks. The Revolving Credit Facility may, subject to certain terms and conditions, be increased by an additional $15.0 million for a total facility size of $60.0 million. The Revolving Credit 
Facility allows for up to $10.0 million of the available credit to be extended in the form of letters of credit. The Revolving Credit Facility terminates on, and all amounts owing thereunder must be repaid on, 
August 31, 2008. 
 
At any time throughout the term of the loan, the Company has the option to elect one of two bases of interest rates. One interest rate option is the greater of (a) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.5%, 
or (b) prime, plus, in either case, an applicable spread that ranges from 0% to 0.25% per annum. The other interest rate option is LIBOR (London InterBank Offered Rate) plus an applicable spread that 
ranges from 1.00% to 1.75% per annum. The applicable spread under each option is dependent upon certain measures of the Company’s financial performance at the time of election. 
 
The Company also pays a quarterly commitment fee based on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility, which is also dependent upon the Company’s financial performance, ranging from 0.25% 
to 0.35% per annum. The Company also is obligated to pay certain fees in respect of any letters of credit issued as well as an administrative fee to the lender acting as administrative agent. Finally, the 
Company was obligated to pay to the lenders a one-time fee in connection with the closing of the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary covenants and restrictions on the Company’s ability to engage in certain activities, including financial performance covenants and limitations on capital 
expenditures, asset sales and acquisitions, and contains customary events of default. As of November 7, 2005, the Company was in full compliance with all covenants. 
 
All amounts owed by Luby’s, Inc. under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed by its subsidiaries. 
 
Subordinated Notes 
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company's President and CEO, Christopher J. Pappas, and the Company's COO, Harris J. Pappas, loaned the Company a total of $10 million in exchange for 
convertible subordinated notes. The notes, as initially executed, bore interest at LIBOR plus 2.0%, payable quarterly. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, these notes were modified in connection with 
the refinancing of the Company’s senior debt.  
 
On June 7, 2005, the subordinated notes became convertible at a price of $3.10 per share for approximately 3.2 million shares of common stock. The market price of the Company's common stock on the 
commitment date (as determined by the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange) was $5.63 per share. The difference between the market price and the lowest possible strike price of $3.10, or $2.53 
per share, multiplied by the relative number of convertible shares equals approximately $8.2 million, which represents the beneficial conversion feature. This amount was recorded as both a component of 
paid-in capital and a discount from the $10 million in subordinated notes. The note discount was being amortized using the effective interest method as non-cash interest expense over the original term of 
the subordinated notes. On August 31, 2005 the notes were converted into 3.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock, under the terms of the amended note agreements discussed further herein. 
Upon conversion, the unamortized book value of the discount ($7.9 million) was written off with a charge to interest expense. 
 
The shares issued pursuant to the conversion were treasury shares that had previously been reserved for such a conversion. At conversion, the excess of the book value of the treasury shares ($69 
million) over the $10 million debt converted resulted in a $59 million charge to retained earnings.  
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Schedule of Outstanding Debt

  

 
The Company’s total outstanding debt of $13.5 million as of August 31, 2005, is due and payable on August 31, 2008, under the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
Interest Expense  
Total interest expense incurred for 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $14.4 million, $10.3 million, and $10.3 million, respectively. Interest paid approximated $4.1 million, $7.9 million, and $8.8 million in fiscal 2005, 
2004, and 2003, respectively. Unamortized debt issuance costs amounting to $2.3 million, incurred in connection with previous senior debt, were written off in the fourth quarter of 2005, upon the full 
repayment of that debt. 
 
Interest expense of approximately $2.7 million, $2.2 million, and $2.7 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, has been allocated to discontinued operations based upon the debt that is 
required to be repaid as a result of the disposal transactions. After the initiation of the debt refinancing in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, only the interest relating to the term loan is reclassified to 
discontinued operations. No interest was capitalized on qualifying properties in 2005, 2004, or 2003. 
 

 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Store Closings 
In accordance with Company guidelines, management periodically reviews the financial performance of each store for indicators of impairment or indicators that closure would be appropriate. Where 
indicators are present, such as three full fiscal years of negative cash flows or other unfavorable market conditions, the carrying values of assets are written down to the estimated future discounted cash 
flows or fully written off in the case of negative cash flows anticipated in the future. Estimated future cash flows are based upon regression analyses generated from similar Company restaurants, 
discounted at the Company's weighted-average cost of capital. 
 
Estimated lease settlements under the Company’s 2001 disposal plan were originally charged to expense under “Provision for Asset Impairments and Restaurant Closings.” Subsequent adjustments to 
these lease settlements for actual exit costs incurred are also reflected in the “Provision for Asset Impairments and Restaurant Closings.” 
 
The Company recognized the following impairment (credits)/charges to income from operations: 
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    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

    (In thousands)  
           
Line of credit   $ 13,500  $ 28,000 
Term loan     -    23,470 
Subordinated notes     -    10,000 

Total debt     13,500    61,470 
Less discount on subordinated notes     -    (7,909)

Total   $ 13,500  $ 53,561 

Note 9. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Store Closings /Discontinued Operations  

    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands, except per share data)  
               
(Reversal of) provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings/(gains on sales), net   $ (632) $ 413  $ 1,175 
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The $1.0 million favorable change from fiscal year 2004 to fiscal year 2005 is attributed to a gain on the sale of the corporate office building in San Antonio, Texas and the settlement of a lease on a 
previously closed restaurant in Lubbock, Texas, both of which occurred during fiscal 2005. The reduction in impairment charges from fiscal year 2003 to fiscal year 2004 is primarily the result of a gain 
recognized in 2004 for the sale of a property that had previously been impaired. 
 
Discontinued Operations 
From the inception of the current business plan in fiscal 2003 through August 31, 2005, the Company has closed 62 operating stores. The operating results of these locations have been reclassified and 
reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets.” SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more disposal 
transactions. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 in the first quarter of fiscal 2003, as required. The following are the sales and pretax losses reported for all discontinued locations: 
 
  

 
Pursuant to the business plan and expectations of its bank group, the Company has continued to apply the proceeds from the sale of closed restaurants to pay down its senior debt. Of the total paid 
down in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, $13.4 million, $15.3 million and $10.6 million, respectively, resulted from sales proceeds related to business plan assets. Proceeds from the sale of properties held for sale 
as of August 31, 2005, may also be applied to pay down senior debt, but under the terms of the Company’s new credit facility, there is no requirement to do so. 
 
In accordance with EITF 87-24, “Allocation of Interest to Discontinued Operations,” interest on debt that is required to be repaid as a result of a disposal transaction should be allocated to discontinued 
operations. For fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, $2.7 million, $2.2 million, and $2.7 million were allocated to discontinued operations. The basis of the allocation to discontinued operations was an 
application of the credit facility's historical effective interest rates to the portion of the estimated total debt that equals the amount related to current and future business plan disposals as explained in the 
previous paragraph. 
 
Relative to the business plan, as the Company has formally settled lease terminations or has reached definitive agreements to terminate leases, the related charges have been recorded. For fiscal 2005, no 
lease exit costs associated with the business plan met these criteria and, consequently, were not accrued as of that date. Furthermore, the Company did not accrue future rental costs in instances where 
locations closed; however, management has the ability to sublease at amounts equal to or greater than the rental costs. The Company does not accrue employee settlement costs; these charges are 
expensed as incurred. 
 
The following summarizes discontinued operations for fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003: 
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    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands, except locations)  
               
Sales   $ 4,471  $ 15,143  $ 67,731 
Pretax losses   $ (5,126) $ (8,811) $ (31,763)

Discontinued locations closed during year     7    10    45 
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Within discontinued operations, the Company offsets gains from applicable property disposals against total impairments as noted above. The amounts in the table noted as Other actually include several 
items. Those items include allocated interest, lease settlements, employment termination and shut-down costs, as well as operating losses through each restaurant's closing date and carrying costs until 
the locations are finally disposed of.  
 
The impairment charges included above relate to properties closed and designated for immediate disposal. The assets of these individual operating units have been written down to their net realizable 
values. In turn, the related properties have either been sold or are being actively marketed for sale. All dispositions are expected to be completed within one year. Within discontinued operations, the 
Company also recorded the related fiscal year-to-date net operating results, allocated interest expense, employee terminations, lease settlements, and basic carrying costs of the closed units. 
 
Property Held for Sale  
At August 31, 2005, the Company had a total of twelve properties recorded at $9.3 million in property held for sale. Of the twelve total properties, two are related to prior disposal plans. In the fourth 
quarter of fiscal 2005, one property in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma was transferred to property held for sale. At the beginning of the year, the Company had a total of 26 properties recorded at $24.6 million in 
property held for sale. 
 
The Company is actively marketing the locations currently classified as property held for sale. When sold, proceeds from properties that have been identified as held for sale, shall be used to reduce 
outstanding debt. All property held for sale consists of already-closed restaurant properties. Property held for sale is valued at the lower of net depreciable value or net realizable value. 
 
The Company’s results of operations (“Other income, net”) will be affected to the extent proceeds from the sale of assets held for sale under the prior disposal plans exceed or are less than net book 
value. For all other properties held for sale, the Company’s results of discontinued operations will be affected to the extent proceeds from the sales exceed or are less than net book value. 
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    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (371 days)   (364 days)   (364 days)  
    (In thousands, except per share data)  
Impairments   $ (1,981) $ (5,985) $ (19, 376)
Gains     1,592    4,090    2,190 
Net impairments     (389)   (1,895)   (17,186)
Other     (4,737)   (6,916)   (14,577)

Discontinued operations, net of taxes     (5,126)   (8,811)   (31,763)
Effect on EPS from net impairments - decrease - basic   $ (0.02) $ (0.08) $ (0.77)

                  
Effect on EPS from discontinued operations - decrease - basic   $ (0.23) $ (0.39) $ (1.41)
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A rollforward of property held for sale for fiscal 2004 and 2005 is provided below (in thousands): 
 

 
  
Reserve for Restaurant Closings 
At August 31, 2005, and August 25, 2004, the Company had a reserve for restaurant closings of $14,450 and $500,000, respectively, included in “Other Liabilities” on the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheet. The reserve balances as of the end of both periods related to the 2001 asset disposal plan and were comprised of estimated lease settlement costs. The settlement costs were accrued in accordance 
with EITF 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity,” which was appropriate for disposal plans initiated before the Company's fiscal 2003 
adoption of SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Since the implementation of SFAS No. 146, lease settlement costs have been expensed as incurred. 
 
Relative to the fiscal 2001 disposal plan, the following summarizes the amounts recognized as cash payments, including actual lease settlements, as well as other reductions. Other reductions include 
certain accrual reversals for settlements that have been more favorable than originally expected and were recorded in discontinued operations after their eventual closure.  
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Property Held for Sale  
Balance as of August 27,2003   $ 32,946 
Net transfers to/from property held for sale     11,366 
Disposals     (13,253)

Net impairment charges     (6,465)

Balance as of August 25,2004     24,594 
Net transfers to/from property held for sale     1,693 
Disposals     (17,088)

Net increase in net realizable value     147 
Balance as of August 31, 2005   $ 9,346 

   
Reserve Balance

(2001 Disposal Plan)  

    Lease Settlement
Costs  

Other Exit
Costs   Total Reserve  

    (In thousands)  
               
Balances at August 31, 2001   $ 4,206  $ 300  $ 4,506 
Additions (reductions)     (373)   -    (373)
Cash payments     (856)   (163)   (1,019)

Balances at August 28, 2002     2,977    137    3,114 
Additions (reductions)     (1,163)   (78)   (1,241)
Cash payments     (151)   (59)   (210)

Balances at August 27, 2003     1,663    -    1,663 
Additions (reductions)     (518)   -    (518)
Cash payments     (645)   -    (645)

Balances at August 25, 2004   $ 500  $ -  $ 500 
Additions (reductions)     (195)   -    (195)
Cash payments     (291)   -    (291)

Balances at August 31, 2005   $ 14  $ -  $ 14 
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Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements 
The Company has no off-balance-sheet structured financing arrangements.  
 
Pending Claims 
Three wage and hour investigations by the U.S. Department of Labor related to the application of wait staff tip pool sums have recently been consolidated in the Houston district. The Company has not 
yet received sufficient data to determine the financial impact to the Company, if any, or the probable outcome of the matter. As with all such matters, the Company intends to vigorously defend its 
position. 
 
The Company is presently, and from time to time, subject to pending claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of any pending legal 
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations or consolidated financial position. 
 
Surety Bonds 
At August 31, 2005, surety bonds in the amount of $5.0 million have been issued as security for the payment of insurance obligations classified as accrued expenses on the balance sheet.  
  

 
The Company conducts part of its operations from facilities that are leased under noncancelable lease agreements. Approximately 88% of the leases contain renewal options ranging from one to thirty 
years.  
 
Most leases include periodic escalation clauses. Accordingly, the Company follows the straight-line rent method of recognizing lease rental expense, as prescribed by SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for 
Leases.” 
 
In fiscal 2005, the Company entered into noncancelable operating lease agreements for certain office equipment, with terms ranging from 48 to 60 months. 
 
Annual future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year as of August 31, 2005, are as follows:  
 

 
Most of the leases are for periods of ten to twenty-five years and provide for contingent rentals based on sales in excess of a base amount. Total rent expense for operating leases for the last three fiscal 
years was as follows:  
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Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies  

Note 11. Operating Leases 

Year Ending:   (In thousands)  
August 30, 2006     4,203 
August 29, 2007     4,045 
August 27, 2008     3,888 
August 26, 2009     3,683 
August 25, 2010     3,281 
Thereafter     18,451 
Total minimum lease payments   $ 37,651 

    Year Ended  

    August 31,
2005  

August 25,
2004  

August 27,
2003  

    (In thousands, except percentages)  
               
               
Minimum rent-facilities   $ 4,109  $ 4,574  $ 4,576 
Contingent rentals     192    290    507 
Minimum rent-equipment      68    -    - 
Total rent expense (including amounts in discontinued operations)   $ 4,369  $ 4,864  $ 5,083 

Percent of sales     1.4%   1.6%   1.7%
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See Note 13 for lease payments associated with related parties. 
 
Sales and Leaseback 
In June 2004, the Company executed a sale and leaseback of land and improvements at one of its Corpus Christi locations with a third party buyer. This particular location featured a restaurant, as well as 
additional shopping center space leased to tenants. The Company sold the entire property but only leased back the restaurant. The terms of the lease provide for a primary term of five years commencing 
July 1, 2005, a basic monthly rental of $7,500. The lease also provides for two five-year renewal option periods. 
 
Proceeds received on the sale of the property totaled $2.85 million and the total gain on the property was $2.37 million. In accordance with FAS 13, the present value of the minimum lease payments, an 
amount totaling $395,000, was booked as a deferred rent liability to be amortized over the five-year primary term life of the lease. The remaining balance of the gain, $1.98 million, was recognized as other 
income in fiscal year 2004. 
  

  
Executive Stock Options  
In connection with their employment agreements effective March 9, 2001, the CEO and the COO were granted approximately 2.2 million stock options at a strike price of $5.00 per share, which was below 
the quoted market price on the date of grant. From that date through fiscal 2004, the Company recognized a total of $5.2 million in noncash compensation expense associated with these options. Total 
expenses of $0, $679,000, and $1.3 million were recognized in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
 
The Company has agreed to reserve shares held in treasury for issuance upon exercise of these options. In accordance with an agreement between Messrs. Pappas and the Company dated June 7, 2004, 
Christopher and Harris Pappas have agreed to limit their exercise of stock options to a number that will ensure the “net treasury shares available” are not exceeded. Pursuant to the terms of that 
agreement, the Company indicated that it will use reasonable efforts to list on the New York Stock Exchange additional shares which would permit full exercise of the options. (See the section entitled 
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Subordinated Notes” for definition of “net treasury shares”.) As of November 7, 2005, neither individual has 
exercised any of these options. 
 
All Stock Options  
The Company has incentive stock plans to provide for market-based incentive awards, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, and restricted stock. Under these plans, stock options may be 
granted at prices not less than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant. Options granted to the participants of the plans are exercisable over staggered periods and expire, depending upon the type 
of grant, in five to ten years. The plans provide for various vesting methods, depending upon the category of personnel.  
 
Under the Company’s Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan, as previously amended and restated, (the “Option Plan”), nonemployee directors are periodically awarded restricted stock and granted 
nonqualified options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at an option price equal to 100% of fair market value on the date of grant. A total of 400,000 shares of common stock have been 
authorized for issuance under the Option Plan. Each option terminates upon the expiration of ten years from the date of grant or one year after the optionee ceases to be a director, whichever first occurs. 
An option may not be exercised prior to the expiration of one year from the date of grant, subject to certain exceptions specified in the Option Plan. As of August 31, 2005, 116,332 options were 
outstanding under the Option Plan, and 262,477 common shares remained available for issuance under the Option Plan. 
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Altogether, under the executive stock options and the stock plans, nonqualified stock options, incentive stock options, and other types of awards for not more than 5.1 million shares of the Company's 
common stock may be granted to eligible employees and nonemployee directors of the Company.  
The following is a summary of activity in the Company's stock option plans and the executive stock options for the three years ended August 31, 2005, August 25, 2004, and August 27, 2003: 
 

 

 
 
Exercise prices for options outstanding as of August 31, 2005, range from $1.98 to $21.625 per share. The weighted-average remaining contractual life of these options is 4.9 years. Excluding 2,240,000 
executive stock options with an exercise price of $5.00 per share, the exercisable options as of August 31, 2005, have a weighted-average exercise price of $8.62 per share. 
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Weighted- 
Average Exercise
Price Per Share - 

Options Outstanding  
Options

Outstanding  
           
Balances at August 28, 2002   $ 8.31    4,195,335 
Granted     1.98    28,000 
Cancelled or expired     12.49    (302,737)
Exercised     --     - 
Balances at August 27, 2003     7.96    3,920,598 
Granted     4.47    20,000 
Cancelled or expired     14.30    (399,569)
Exercised     5.44    (7,500)

Balances at August 25, 2004     7.22    3,533,529 
Granted     6.45    16,000 
Cancelled or expired     14.66    (606,047)
Exercised     6.29    (190,850)

Balances at August 31, 2005   $ 5.65    2,752,632 

Balances of Exercisable Options as of:  
       
August 28, 2002     2,243,095 
August 27, 2003     3,030,098 
August 25, 2004     3,395,029 
August 31, 2005     2,721,382 
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Options Outstanding and Exercisable by Price Range

As of August 31, 2005

At August 31, 2005 and August 25, 2004, the number of incentive stock option shares available to be granted under the plans was 1,907,250 and 1,315,202 shares, respectively.  
 
The Company accounts for its employee stock compensation plans using the intrinsic value method of accounting set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees,” and the related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant 
over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. 
 
The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share if the Company had converted to the fair-value method of expensing stock options, as alternatively allowed 
under SFAS No. 123: 

 
(a) Income taxes have been offset by a valuation allowance. See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Options Outstanding   Options Exercisable  

Range of
Exercise Prices  

Number
Outstanding  

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual Life  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price  
Number

Exercisable  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price  
                               
$ 1.9800  -   $ 4.4700    42,000    7.88  $ 3.0471    42,000  $ 3.0471 
  5.0000   -     5.0000    2,240,000    5.52    5.0000    2,240,000    5.0000 
  5.4375   -     9.4200    291,500    2.47    6.7921    260,250    6.8472 
  9.7500  -     10.8125    38,000    1.18    10.1069    38,000    10.1069 
  11.5625  -     11.5625    5,000    0.22    11.5625    5,000    11.5625 
  12.0625  -     12.0625    107,800    0.12    12.0625    107,800    12.0625 
  15.4375  -     15.4375    15,000    3.36    15.4375    15,000    15.4375 
  17.1250  -     17.1250    3,332    2.90    17.1250    3,332    17.1250 
  20.2500  -     20.2500    5,000    1.37    20.2500    5,000    20.2500 
  21.6250  -     21.6250    5,000    0.37    21.6250    5,000    21.6250 
$ 1.9800  -   $ 21.6250    2,752,632    4.92  $ 5.6484    2,721,382  $ 5.6406 

 
 

August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27,
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands, except per share data)  
               
Net income (loss), as reported   $ 3,448  $ (3,122) $ (29,721)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income (loss), net of related tax effects 

(a) 
    -    679    1,310 

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair-value-based method for all 

awards, net of related tax effects (a) 
 

  (277)   (1,208)   (2,861)

Pro forma net income (loss)   $ 3,171  $ (3,651) $ (31,272)

Net income (loss) per share as reported:                 
Basic   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

Assuming dilution   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

Pro forma net income (loss) per share:                 
Basic   $ 0.14  $ (0.16) $ (1.39)

Assuming dilution   $ 0.14  $ (0.16) $ (1.39)
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In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments (Revised 2004).” SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for 
transactions in which an entity (i) exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services, or (ii) incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity's equity 
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of the equity instruments. SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for stock-based compensation using APB 25 and requires that such transactions 
be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement based on their fair values on the date of the grant. The Company will transition to fair-value based accounting for stock-based compensation 
using a modified version of prospective application (“modified prospective application”). Under modified prospective application, as it is applicable to the Company, SFAS 123R applies to new awards 
and to awards modified, repurchased, or cancelled after September 1, 2005. Additionally, compensation cost for the portion of awards for which the requisite service has not been rendered (generally 
referring to non-vested awards) that are outstanding as of September 1, 2005 must be recognized as the remaining requisite service is rendered during the period of and/or the periods after the adoption of 
SFAS 123R. The attribution of compensation cost for those earlier awards will be based on the same method and on the same grant-date fair values previously determined for the pro forma disclosures 
required for companies that did not adopt the fair value accounting method for stock-based employee compensation. Based on the stock-based compensation awards outstanding as of August 31, 2005 
for which the requisite service is not expected to be fully rendered prior to September 1, 2005, the Company expects additional pre-tax, quarterly compensation cost recognized beginning in the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2006 as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123R to be immaterial. Future levels of compensation cost recognized related to stock-based compensation awards (including the 
aforementioned expected costs during the period of adoption) may be impacted by new awards and/or modifications, repurchases and cancellations of existing awards before and after the adoption of this 
standard. 
 
The weighted-average fair value of the individual options granted during 2005, 2004, and 2003 was estimated at $2.69, $2.32, and $0.94, respectively, on the date of grant. The fair values were determined 
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 

 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan  
The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for key executives and officers. The SERP is a “target” benefit plan, with the annual lifetime benefit based upon a percentage of 
average salary during the final five years of service at age 65, offset by several sources of income including benefits payable under deferred compensation agreements, if applicable, and Social Security. 
SERP benefits will be paid from the Company's assets. The net expense (benefit) incurred for this plan for the years ended August 31, 2005, August 25, 2004, and August 27, 2003, was $(129,000), 
$(188,000), and $67,000, respectively, and the unfunded accrued liability, included in “Other Liabilities” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, as of August 31, 2005, August 25, 2004, and August 
27, 2003, was approximately $337,000, $488,000, and $709,000, respectively.  
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    2005   2004   2003  
Dividend yield     -%   -%   -%

Volatility     0.75    0.57    0.51 
Risk-free interest rate     3.70%   3.01%   3.02%

Expected life     5.00    5.00    5.00 
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Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan 
Under the Company’s Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan (“Phantom Stock Plan”), nonemployee directors deferred portions of their retainer and meeting fees which, along with certain matching 
incentives, were credited to phantom stock accounts in the form of phantom shares priced at the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Additionally, the phantom stock 
accounts were credited with dividends, if any, paid on the common stock represented by phantom shares. Authorized shares (100,000 shares) under the Phantom Stock Plan were fully depleted in early 
fiscal year 2003 and as such, no deferrals, incentives or dividends have been credited to phantom stock accounts since then. As participants cease to be directors, their phantom shares are converted into 
an equal number of shares of common stock and issued from the Company’s treasury stock. As of August 31, 2005, approximately 29,600 phantom shares remained unissued under the Phantom Stock 
Plan. 
 
401(k) Plan 
The Company has a voluntary 401(k) employee savings plan to provide substantially all employees of the Company an opportunity to accumulate personal funds for their retirement. These contributions 
may be made on a pre-tax basis to the plan, and the Company matches 25% of participants' contributions of up to 4% of their salary. The net expense recognized in connection with the employer match 
feature of the voluntary 401(k) employee savings plan for the years ended August 31, 2005, August 25, 2004, and August 27, 2003, was $192,000, $201,000, and $252,000, respectively. 
 
Deferred Compensation Plans 
During 1999, the Company established a nonqualified deferred compensation plan for highly compensated executives which was terminated in fiscal 2004. The plan allowed deferral of a portion of annual 
salary and up to 100% of bonuses before taxes. The Company did not match any deferral amounts and retained ownership of all assets until distributed. The funds from the terminated plan were 
distributed in fiscal 2004.  
 
The Company continued to make payments to former employees or their beneficiaries under a previous plan that provides retirement, death, and disability benefits for certain highly compensated 
executives. All benefits under this plan were fully accrued prior to fiscal year 2000, and future benefits payable amount to approximately $273,000 as of August 31, 2005. 
 
Profit Sharing Plan 
In fiscal 2004, the Company terminated its profit sharing and retirement plan (the Plan) and is in the process of making distributions to all Plan participants. The Plan covered substantially all employees 
who had attained the age of 21 years and had completed one year of continuous service. It was administered by a corporate trustee, was a “qualified plan” under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code, and provided for the payment of the employee's vested portion of the Plan upon retirement, termination, disability, or death. The Plan had been funded by contributions of a portion of the net 
earnings of the Company and was amended effective August 31, 2001, to make all contributions discretionary. No annual contributions to the Plan were made in fiscal 2005, 2004, or 2003. 
  

 
Affiliate Services 
The CEO and COO of the Company, Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas, respectively, own two restaurant entities that may provide services to Luby's, Inc. as detailed in the Affiliate Services 
Agreement and the Master Sales Agreement. Under the terms of the Affiliate Services Agreement, the Pappas entities may provide accounting, architectural, and general business services. No costs were 
incurred relative to the Affiliate Services Agreement in fiscal 2003. The total costs incurred relative to the Affiliate Services Agreements were $5,000 and $1,000 in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Under the terms of the Master Sales Agreement, the Pappas entities may provide specialized (customized) equipment fabrication and basic equipment maintenance, including stainless steel stoves, 
shelving, rolling carts, and chef tables. The total costs under the Master Sales Agreement of custom-fabricated and refurbished equipment in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003 were approximately $176,000, 
$113,000, and $174,000, respectively. 
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Operating Leases 
In a separate contract from the Affiliate Services Agreement and the Master Sales Agreement, the Company entered into a three-year lease which commenced on June 1, 2001, and expired on May 31, 
2004. This lease is currently on a month-to-month basis. The leased property, referred to as the Houston Service Center, is used to accommodate the Company's own in-house repair and fabrication 
center. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease was approximately $88,000, $82,000, and $79,000, in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
 
From an unrelated third party, the Company previously leased a location used to house increased equipment inventories due to store closures under the business plan. The Company considered it more 
prudent to lease this location rather than to pursue purchasing a storage facility, as its strategy is to focus its capital expenditures on its operating restaurants. In a separate transaction, the third-party 
property owner sold the location to the Pappas entities during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, with the Pappas entities becoming the Company's landlord for that location effective August 1, 2003. The 
storage site complements the Houston Service Center with approximately 27,000 square feet of warehouse space at an approximate monthly rate of $0.21 per square foot. The amount paid by the Company 
pursuant to the terms of this lease was approximately $72,000 and $69,000 in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
In another separate contract, pursuant to the terms of a ground lease dated March 25, 1994, the Company paid rent to PHCG Investments for a Luby's restaurant the Company operated in Dallas, Texas, 
until that location was closed early in the third quarter of fiscal 2003. Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas are general partners of PHCG Investments. Preceding the store's closure, the Company 
entered into a lease termination agreement with a third party unaffiliated with the Pappas entities. That agreement severed the Company's interest in the PHCG property in exchange for a payment of cash 
to the Company. At that time, the Company recognized a gain of $735,000 as “Other Income, Net”, which represented the excess of the cash received over the carrying amount of the Company’s 
investment in the related assets. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease before its termination was approximately $42,000 in fiscal 2003. No costs were incurred under this 
lease in fiscal 2004 or 2005. 
 
Late in the third quarter of fiscal 2004, Christopher J. and Harris J. Pappas became partners in a limited partnership which purchased a retail strip center in Houston, Texas. Messrs. Pappas own a 50% 
limited partnership and a 50% general partnership interest. One of the Company's restaurants has rented approximately 7% of the space in that center since July 1969. No changes were made to the 
Company's lease terms as a result of the transfer of ownership of the center to the new partnership. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease was approximately $167,000 and 
$56,000 for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. 
 
Affiliated rents paid for the Houston Service Center, the separate storage facility, the Dallas property, and the Houston property leases combined represented 8.4%, 5.6%, and 3.7% of total rents for 
continuing operations for fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
 
Subordinated Notes 
Refer to Note 8 for information on the subordinated notes. 
 
Board of Directors 
Pursuant to the terms of a separate Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, entered into by and among the Company, Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas, the Company agreed to submit three 
persons designated by Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas as nominees for election at the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Messrs. Pappas designated themselves and Frank Markantonis 
as their nominees for directors, all of whom were subsequently elected. Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas are brothers. As disclosed in the proxy statement for the February 26, 2004, annual 
meeting of shareholders, Frank Markantonis is an attorney whose principal client is Pappas Restaurants, Inc., an entity owned by Harris J. Pappas and Christopher J. Pappas.  
 
Under the terms of the amended Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2004, the right to nominate directors for election was modified to provide that Messrs. Pappas may continue to nominate persons for 
election to the board which, if such nominees are elected, would result in Messrs. Pappas having nominated three of the then-serving directors of the Company. Messrs. Pappas retain their right for so 
long as they both are executive officers of the Company.  
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Christopher J. Pappas, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, is a member of the Board of Directors of Amegy Bank, National Association, which is a lender under, and Documentation 
Agent of, the Revolving Credit Facility. 
 
Key Management Personnel 
As of November 2005, new three-year employment contracts were finalized for Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas.  
 
Ernest Pekmezaris, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is also the Treasurer of Pappas Restaurants, Inc. Compensation for the services provided by Mr. Pekmezaris to Pappas Restaurants, Inc. is paid 
entirely by that entity. 
 
Peter Tropoli, Senior Vice President-Administration and General Counsel of the Company, is an attorney who, from time to time, has provided litigation services to entities controlled by Christopher J. 
Pappas and Harris J. Pappas. Mr. Tropoli is the stepson of Frank Markantonis, who, as previously mentioned, is a director of the Company. 
 
Paulette Gerukos, Vice President of Human Resources of the Company, is the sister-in-law of Harris J. Pappas, the Chief Operating Officer. 

Table of Contents

Page 53



 
In 1991, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a dividend of one common stock purchase right for each outstanding share of common stock. The rights are not initially 
exercisable. The Company amended the Shareholder Rights Plan effective February 27, 2004, to extend the expiration date to April 16, 2007. The rights may become exercisable under circumstances 
described in the plan if any person or group becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the common stock or announces a tender or exchange offer, the completion of which would result in the 
ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of the common stock (either, an Acquiring Person). Once the rights become exercisable, each right will be exercisable to purchase, for $27.50 (the Purchase 
Price), one-half of one share of common stock, par value $.32 per share, of the Company. If any person becomes an Acquiring Person, each right will entitle the holder, other than the Acquiring Person, to 
acquire for the Purchase Price a number of shares of the Company's common stock having a market value of four times the Purchase Price.  
 
In connection with the employment of Christopher J. Pappas, the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer, and Harris J. Pappas, the Company's Chief Operating Officer, the Shareholder Rights 
Plan, as amended, exempts from the operation of the plan Messrs. Pappas' ownership of the Company's common stock to March 8, 2001 (and certain additional shares permitted to be acquired) and upon 
their election to convert the subordinated notes on August 31, 2005, and certain shares of common stock which may be acquired in connection with options issued on the date of their employment. 
 
In the past, the Board of Directors periodically authorized the purchase, in the open market, of shares of the Company's outstanding common stock. The most recent authorization was a purchase of 
850,300 shares of the Company's common stock at a cost of $12,919,000 in 1999, which are being held as treasury stock. There have been no treasury shares purchased since 1999. 
 
The Company has approximately 3.2 million shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding stock options. 
 
Treasury Shares 
The Company's treasury shares have been reserved for the recent conversion of subordinated debt (See Note 8, “Debt”) and for two other purposes - the issuance of shares to Messrs. Pappas upon 
exercise of the options granted to them on March 9, 2001, and for shares issuable under the Company's Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan. In accordance with their agreement with the Company 
dated June 7, 2004, Messrs. Pappas have agreed to limit their exercise of stock options to a number that will ensure the “net treasury shares available” are not exceeded. Pursuant to the terms of that 
agreement, the Company indicated that it will use reasonable efforts to list on the New York Stock Exchange additional shares which would permit full exercise of those options. “Net Treasury Shares 
Available” is defined in the debt agreements as the number of shares of common stock then held by the Company in treasury, minus the number of shares of common stock issuable or issued after June 7, 
2004, under the Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan, minus the number of shares of common stock issuable or issued upon conversion of the subordinated notes, as calculated assuming the 
lowest conversion price stated in the subordinated notes. 
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A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic earnings per share and earnings per share assuming dilution is shown in the table below:  
 

  

 

 
The Company's quarterly financial information has been affected by reclassifications to discontinued operations in accordance with the disposal of operating units under the Company's business plan. 
The following is a summary of quarterly unaudited financial information for 2005 and 2004, including those reclassifications and restatements. 
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    Year Ended  

 
 

August 31,
2005

 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

August 27,
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (In thousands, except per share data)  
Numerator:              

Income from continuing operations   $ 8,574  $ 5,689  $ 2,042 

Net income (loss)   $ 3,448  $ (3,122) $ (29,721)

Denominator:                 
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted-average shares     22,608    22,470    22,451 
Effect of potentially dilutive securities:                 

Employee and nonemployee stock options     802    149    1 
Phantom stock     43    60    80 
Restricted stock     2    -    - 

                  
Denominator for earnings per share -assuming dilution      23,455    22,679    22,532 

Income from continuing operations:                 
Basic   $ 0.38  $ 0.25  $ 0.09 
Assuming dilution (a)   $ 0.37  $ 0.25  $ 0.09 

Net income (loss) per share:                 
Basic   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

Assuming dilution (a)   $ 0.15  $ (0.14) $ (1.32)

(a) Potentially dilutive shares that were not included in the computation of net income (loss) per share because to do so would have been antidilutive amounted to 3,219,000 shares in fiscal 2005, 
2,216,000 in fiscal 2004, and 2,000,000 in fiscal 2003 (including the dilutive effect of the convertible subordinated notes). Additionally, stock options with exercise prices exceeding current market 
prices that were excluded from the computation of net income (loss) per share amounted to 484,000 shares in fiscal 2005, 2,495,000 shares in fiscal 2004 and 4,078,000 shares in fiscal 2003. 
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None. 
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    Quarter Ended (a)  

    August 31,

2005 (b)  
May 4,

2005  
February 9,

2005  
November 17,

2004  
    (119 days)   (84 days)   (84 days)   (84 days)  
    (In thousands except per share data)  
       
Sales   $ 105,423  $ 76,241  $ 71,904  $ 68,583 
Gross profit (c)     40,754    29,228    26,591    23,817 
Income (loss) from continuing operations     188    6,060    2,733    (407)

Discontinued operations     (2,048)   (2,356)   (106)   (616)

Net (loss) income     (1,860)   3,704    2,627    (1,023)

Net (loss) income per share:                      
Basic     (0.08)   0.16    0.12    (0.05)

Assuming dilution     (0.08)   0.15    0.11    (0.05)

    Quarter Ended (a)  

 
 

August 25,
2004

(As adjusted)  

May 5,
2004

(As adjusted)  

February 11,
2004

(As adjusted)  

November 19,
2003

(As adjusted)  
    (112 days)   (84 days)   (84 days)   (84 days)  
    (In thousands except per share data)  
                   
Sales   $ 92,646  $ 71,572  $ 67,996  $ 65,635 
Gross profit (c)     31,921    26,427    23,767    22,850 
Income (loss) from continuing operations     6,394    2,680    (1,498)   (1,887)

Discontinued operations     (529)   (2,305)   (3,531)   (2,446)

Net income (loss)     5,865    375    (5,029)   (4,333)

Net income (loss) per share:                      
Basic     0.26    0.02    (0.22)   (0.19)

Assuming dilution     0.25    0.02    (0.22)   (0.19)

(a) The quarter ended August 31, 2005, consists of four four-week periods and one five-week period and the quarter ended August 25, 2004, consist of four four-week periods. All other quarters 
presented represent three four-week periods.  

(b) Results include a writeoff of $7.9 million associated with the conversion of the Company’s convertible subordinated debt (see Note 8. “Debt”). 
(c) Represents “Sales” less “Cost of Food” and “Payroll and Related Costs”, as classified in the Consolidated Statement of Operation for each period presented. 
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Evaluation of Disclosure Control and Procedures 
The Company’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of August 31, 2005. Based on such 
evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of August 31, 2005, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in recording, 
processing, summarizing and reporting information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act within the time periods specified in the SEC’s 
rules and forms. For Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Report see Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Report of Management. 
 
 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended August 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
 

 
None. 
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PART III

 
There is incorporated in this Item 10 by reference that portion of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions “Election of 
Directors,” “Information Concerning Meetings, Committees of the Board, and Compensation of Directors - Finance and Audit Committee,” ”Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,”
and “Corporate Governance.” Information regarding executive officers of the Company is set forth in Item 4A of Part I of this Report.  
 
The Company has in place a Policy Guide on Standards of Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees, as well as the board of directors, and Supplemental Standards of Conduct and Ethics for the 
CEO, CFO, Controller, and all senior financial officers. This Policy Guide and the Supplemental Standards were filed as exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 
2003. The Company intends to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendments to or waivers from the code of ethics or supplementary code of ethics by posting 
such information on the Company's website at www.lubys.com. 
 

 
There is incorporated in this Item 11 by reference that portion of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions 
“Compensation of Directors,” “Executive Compensation Committee Report,” “Executive Compensation,” “Deferred Compensation,” and”“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”  
 

 
There is incorporated in this Item 12 by reference that portion of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions “Ownership of 
Equity Securities in the Company” and “Principal Shareholders.”  
 
Securities authorized under equity compensation plans as of August 31, 2005, were as follows: 
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    (a)   (b)   (c)  
               

Plan Category

 
Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights  

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights  

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Future Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans

Excluding Securities Reflected
in Column (a))  

               
Equity compensation plans previously approved by 

security holders
    481,382  $ 8.62    1,907,250 

Equity compensation plans not previously approved 
by security holders  

  2,269,625    5.02    - 
                  
Total     2,751,007  $ 5.65    1,907,250 
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There is incorporated in this Item 13 by reference that portion of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the caption “Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions.”  
 

 
There is incorporated in this Item 14 by reference that portion of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the caption “Principal 
Accountant Fees and Services.” 
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PART IV
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

1. Financial Statements 

  The following financial statements are filed as part of this Report:

  Consolidated balance sheets at August 31, 2005, and August 25, 2004

  Consolidated statements of operations for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005

  Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005

  Consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2005

  Notes to consolidated financial statements

  Attestation Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

2. Financial Statement Schedules 

  All schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule or because the information required is included in 
the financial statements and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits 

  The following exhibits are filed as a part of this Report: 

3(a)  Certificate of Incorporation of Luby's, Inc. as currently in effect (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and 
incorporated herein by reference). 

    
3(b)  Bylaws of Luby's, Inc. as currently in effect (filed as Exhibit 3(c) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by 

reference).  
    

4(a)  Description of Common Stock Purchase Rights of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., in Form 8-A (filed April 17, 1991, effective April 26, 1991, File No. 1-8308, and incorporated herein by 
reference). 

    
4(b)  Amendment No. 1 dated December 19, 1991, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 

November 30, 1991, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

4(c)  Amendment No. 2 dated February 7, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
February 28, 1995, and incorporated herein by reference).  

    
4(d)  Amendment No. 3 dated May 29, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 

1995, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

4(e)  Amendment No. 4 dated March 8, 2001, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-A12B/A on March 22, 2001, and 
incorporated herein by reference). 
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4(f)  Credit Agreement dated August 31, 2005, among Luby's, Inc., the lenders party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and Amegy Bank, National Association, as 
Documentation Agents, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. 

    
10(a)  Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1989, and 

incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(b)  Amendment to Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(k) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(c)  Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted October 27, 1994 (filed as Exhibit 10(g) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 

quarter ended November 30, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(d)  Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(m) to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(e)  Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted March 19, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(o) to the Company's Quarterly Report on 

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(f)  Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan of Luby's, Inc. approved by the shareholders of Luby's, Inc. on January 14, 2000 (filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(g)  Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 30, 1996 (filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 

August 31, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(h)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(i)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted January 9, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(u) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 

quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(j)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted May 21, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 10(q) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.)*  

    
10(k)  Luby's Incentive Stock Plan adopted October 16, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1998, and 

incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(l)  Registration Rights Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on 
Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(m)  Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc. Harris J. Pappas, and Christopher J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K 

dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(n)  Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Christopher J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(w) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

Page 61



 

 

Table of Contents

10(o)  Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Harris J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(x) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and 
incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(p)  Affiliate Services Agreement dated August 31, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, Harris J. Pappas, Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed 

as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2001, refiled as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended February 13, 2002, to include signature reference and an exhibit that were inadvertently omitted, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(q)  Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2001, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal 

year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(r)  Luby's, Inc. Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan effective September 28, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(dd) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).* 

    
10(s)  Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each member of its Board of Directors initially dated July 23, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10(gg) to the Company's 

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(t)  Amended and Restated Affiliate Services Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(hh) to 
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(u)  Master Sales Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. and Procedure adopted by the Finance and Audit 

Committee of the Board of Directors on July 23, 2002, pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Master Sales Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10(ii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(v)  Lease Agreement dated October 15, 2002, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Rush Truck Centers of Texas, L.P. and Amendment dated August 1, 2003, by and between Luby's, Inc. and 

Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(gg) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(w)  Agreement dated June 7, 2004, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended May 5, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(x)  First Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2004, by and among Luby's, Inc., Harris J. Pappas, and Christopher J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's Quarterly 

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(y)  Employment Agreement dated November 9, 2005, between Luby's, Inc. and Christopher J. Pappas. 
    

10(z)  Employment Agreement dated November 9, 2005, between Luby's, Inc. and Harris J. Pappas. 
    

11  Statement regarding computation of Per Share Earnings. ** 
    

14(a)  Policy Guide on Standards of Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees, as well as the board of directors (filed as Exhibit 14(a) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 
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14(b)  Supplemental Standards of Conduct and Ethics for the CEO, CFO, Controller, and all senior financial officers (filed as Exhibit 14(b) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
21  Subsidiaries of registrant. 

    
23  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. 

    
31.1  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

    
31.2  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

    
32.1  Section 1350 certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

    
32.2  Section 1350 certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

    
99(a)  Corporate Governance Guidelines of Luby's, Inc., as amended March 5, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 99(a) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 13, 

2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 

*Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
**Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements under Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of FASB 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, Earnings per Share. 
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly 
authorized. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates 
indicated.
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November 11, 2005   LUBY'S, INC.

Date   (Registrant)

By: /s/Christopher J. Pappas  
  Christopher J. Pappas  
  President and Chief Executive Officer  

Signature and Date   Name and Title

     
/s/GASPER MIR, III   Gasper Mir, III, Director and Chairman of the Board

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/CHRISTOPHER J. PAPPAS   Christopher J. Pappas, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/HARRIS J. PAPPAS   Harris J. Pappas, Director, and Chief Operating Officer

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/ERNEST PEKMEZARIS   Ernest Pekmezaris, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/JUDITH B. CRAVEN   Judith B. Craven, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/ARTHUR R. EMERSON   Arthur R. Emerson, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/JILL GRIFFIN   Jill Griffin, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/J.S.B. JENKINS   J.S.B. Jenkins, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/FRANK MARKANTONIS   Frank Markantonis, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/JOE C. MC KINNEY   Joe C. McKinney, Director

November 11, 2005    
     

/s/JIM W. WOLIVER   Jim W. Woliver, Director

November 11, 2005    
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3(a)  Certificate of Incorporation of Luby's, Inc. as currently in effect (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and 
incorporated herein by reference). 

    
3(b)  Bylaws of Luby's, Inc. as currently in effect (filed as Exhibit 3(c) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by 

reference).  
    

4(a)  Description of Common Stock Purchase Rights of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., in Form 8-A (filed April 17, 1991, effective April 26, 1991, File No. 1-8308, and incorporated herein by 
reference). 

    
4(b)  Amendment No. 1 dated December 19, 1991, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 

November 30, 1991, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

4(c)  Amendment No. 2 dated February 7, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
February 28, 1995, and incorporated herein by reference).  

    
4(d)  Amendment No. 3 dated May 29, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 

1995, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

4(e)  Amendment No. 4 dated March 8, 2001, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-A12B/A on March 22, 2001, and 
incorporated herein by reference). 

    
4(f)  Credit Agreement, dated August 31, 2005, among Luby’s, Inc., the lenders party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and Amegy Bank, National Association, as 

Documentation Agents, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. 
    

10(a)  Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1989, and 
incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(b)  Amendment to Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(k) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 

quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    
    

10(c)  Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted October 27, 1994 (filed as Exhibit 10(g) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended November 30, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(d)  Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(m) to the Company's Quarterly Report on 

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(e)  Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted March 19, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(o) to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(f)  Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan of Luby's, Inc. approved by the shareholders of Luby's, Inc. on January 14, 2000 (filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the 

Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(g)  Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 30, 1996 (filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
August 31, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
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10(h)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted January 14, 1997 (filed as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(i)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted January 9, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(u) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 

quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(j)  Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted May 21, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 10(q) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.)*  

    
10(k)  Luby's Incentive Stock Plan adopted October 16, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1998, and 

incorporated herein by reference).*  
    

10(l)  Registration Rights Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on 
Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(m)  Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc. Harris J. Pappas, and Christopher J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K 

dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(n)  Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Christopher J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(w) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
    

10(o)  Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Harris J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(x) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and 
incorporated herein by reference).*  

    
10(p)  Affiliate Services Agreement dated August 31, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, Harris J. Pappas, Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed 

as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2001, refiled as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended February 13, 2002, to include signature reference and an exhibit that were inadvertently omitted, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(q)  Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2001, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal 

year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(r)  Luby's, Inc. Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan effective September 28, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10(dd) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).* 

    
10(s)  Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each member of its Board of Directors initially dated July 23, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10(gg) to the Company's 

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(t)  Amended and Restated Affiliate Services Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(hh) to 
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 
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10(u)  Master Sales Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. and Procedure adopted by the Finance and Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors on July 23, 2002, pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Master Sales Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10(ii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended August 28, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(v)  Lease Agreement dated October 15, 2002, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Rush Truck Centers of Texas, L.P. and Amendment dated August 1, 2003, by and between Luby's, Inc. and 

Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10(gg) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(w)  Agreement dated June 7, 2004, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J. Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended May 5, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
10(x)  First Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2004, by and among Luby's, Inc., Harris J. Pappas, and Christopher J. Pappas (filed as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's Quarterly 

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

10(y)  Employment Agreement dated November 9, 2005, between Luby's, Inc. and Christopher J. Pappas* 
    

10(z)  Employment Agreement dated November 9, 2005, between Luby's, Inc. and Harris J. Pappas* 
    

11  Statement regarding computation of Per Share Earnings.** 
    

14(a)  Policy Guide on Standards of Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees, as well as the board of directors (filed as Exhibit 14(a) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 

    
14(b)  Supplemental Standards of Conduct and Ethics for the CEO, CFO, Controller, and all senior financial officers (filed as Exhibit 14(b) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 

the fiscal year ended August 27, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 
    

21  Subsidiaries of Registrant 
    

23  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. 
    

31.1  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
    

31.2  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
    

32.1  Section 1350 certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
    

32.2  Section 1350 certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
    

99(a)  Corporate Governance Guidelines of Luby's, Inc., as amended March 5, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 99(a) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 13, 
2003, and incorporated herein by reference). 

* Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements under Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of FASB 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, Earnings per Share. 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

 
This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”), between Luby’s, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Luby’s” or the “Company”), and Christopher J. Pappas, a resident of Houston, Texas, (“Executive”) 

is executed this 9th day of November, 2005 to be effective as of the 1st day of September, 2005 (“Effective Date”). For purposes of this Agreement, “Luby’s” or the “Company” shall include the 
subsidiaries of Luby’s. Luby’s and Executive are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.” The Parties hereby agree as follows:  

 
1.      Definitions. As used in this Agreement, and unless the context requires a different meaning, the following terms have the meanings indicated: 
 
“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person. 

For purposes of this definition and this Agreement, the term “control” (and correlative terms “controlling,” “controlled by” and “under common control with”) means possession of the power, whether by 
contract, equity ownership or otherwise, to direct the policies or management of a Person. 
 

“Associate” has the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act. 
 

“Beneficially Own” or “Beneficial Ownership” is defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 of the Exchange Act, but without taking into account any contractual restrictions or limitations on voting or 
other rights. 
 

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

“Business Combination” means (i) any consolidation, merger, share exchange or similar business combination transaction involving the Company with any Person or (ii) the sale, assignment, 
conveyance, transfer, lease or other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets. 
 

“Change of Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the events described in subsections (i) through (iv) below: 



(i)      The Rights Agreement shall have been determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated by a court of competent jurisdiction in a final and non-appealable judgment 
rendered in connection with a contest for control of the Company and a substitute defense mechanism having the effectiveness of the Rights Agreement is not promptly adopted or, if 
adopted, is determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated, and either (y) the Company has received a report on Schedule 13D, or an amendment to such a report, filed with the SEC 
pursuant to Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act disclosing that any Person or 13d Group other than Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates 
and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, Beneficially Owns, directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common 
Stock, or (z) the Board of Directors has actual knowledge of facts on the basis of which any Person or 13d Group other than Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or 
together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, is required to file such a report on Schedule 13D, or to make an amendment to such a report, 
with the SEC (or would be required to file such a report or amendment upon the lapse of the applicable period of time specified in Section 13(d) of the Securities Act) disclosing that such 
Person or 13d Group other than Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, 
Beneficially Owns, directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock. 
 

(ii)      Either (y) the purchase by any Person, other than the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company or Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, 
individually or together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, of shares of Common Stock pursuant to a tender or exchange offer to acquire 
any Common Stock (or securities convertible into Common Stock) for cash, securities or any other consideration or (z) any Person, other than the Company or a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company or Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas or any of their Affiliates, Associates or members of any 13d Group of which they are a part, individually or 
together, shall make any such offer to acquire any Common Stock pursuant to a tender or exchange offer for cash, securities or any other consideration and either (1) the Company shall 
have recommended that stockholders accept such offer or (2) within 10 business days (as such term is used in Rule 14e-2 under the Exchange Act), the Company shall have made no 
recommendation that stockholders reject such offer or (3) the Company shall have recommended that stockholders reject such offer and the Rights Agreement shall have been 
determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated by a court of competent jurisdiction in a final and non-appealable judgment rendered in connection with a contest for control of the 
Company and a substitute defense mechanism having the effectiveness of the Rights Agreement is not promptly adopted or, if adopted, is determined to be invalid or is otherwise 
abrogated, provided that, after consummation of any such offer, such Person Beneficially Owns, or would Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the 
combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock (calculated as provided in paragraph (d) of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act in the case of rights to acquire stock). 
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(iii)      The Company shall, after approval by its Board of Directors or an authorized committee thereof, enter into any agreement contemplating a transaction described 
below, other than any such transaction with Christopher J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are 
a part:  (v) a transaction pursuant to which the Company agrees to issue or sell, regardless of the consideration therefor, a number of its shares of Common Stock that would result in 
any Person acquiring Beneficial Ownership, directly or indirectly, of twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock, calculated as in clause (ii) 
above; (w) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which the Company is not the continuing or surviving corporation or pursuant to which shares of 
Common Stock would be converted into cash, securities or other property, other than a consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which holders of its 
Common Stock immediately prior to the consolidation or merger or similar transaction own at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the 
surviving corporation immediately after the consolidation, merger or similar transaction (or at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of a 
corporation which owns directly or indirectly all of the voting stock of the surviving corporation); (x) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which 
the Company is the continuing or surviving corporation but in which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to the consolidation, merger or similar transaction do not hold 
at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock of the continuing or surviving corporation (except where such holders of Common Stock hold at least 
a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the corporation which owns directly or indirectly all of the voting stock of the Company); (y) any sale, lease, 
exchange or other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of all or substantially all the assets of the Company (except such a transfer to a corporation which is 
wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company), or any complete liquidation of the Company; or (z) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company where, 
after the consolidation, merger or similar transaction, one Person owns 100% of the shares of Common Stock (except where the holders of the Company’s voting stock immediately prior 
to such consolidation, merger or similar transaction own at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of such Person immediately after such 
consolidation, merger or similar transaction). 
 

(iv)      A change in the majority of the members of the board of directors of the Company within a 24-month period unless the election or nomination for election by the 
shareholders of each new director was approved by the vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office who were in office at the beginning of the 24-month period. 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, the “effective date of a Change of Control” is the date that an event described in subsection (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) occurs or the date upon which all the events 
necessary to constitute the Change of Control shall have occurred. 
 
“Common Stock” means the Company’s common stock, par value $.32 per share, and any capital stock for or into which such Common Stock hereafter is exchanged, converted, reclassified or 

recapitalized by the Company or pursuant to an agreement or Business Combination to which the Company is a party. 
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“Covenant Period” means: 
 
(i)      twenty-four (24) months if Employee is terminated by the Company for Cause or if Executive terminates his employment without Good Reason; or (ii) if Executive’s 

employment is terminated for any other reason; 
 

 

 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder. 

 
“Person” means an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, limited liability company, joint venture, joint stock company, government (or an 

agency or political subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind. 
 
“Rights Agreement” means the Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 between the Company and Ameritrust Company, N.A. as Agent, as amended from time to time. 
 
“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
“13d Group” means a group within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. 
 
2.      Employment. Luby’s hereby employs Executive, and Executive hereby accepts employment with Luby’s, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  
 
3.      Term. Subject to the provisions for termination of employment as provided in Section 8(a), Executive’s employment under this Agreement shall be for a period beginning on the Effective 

Date and ending on August 31, 2008 (“Term”). 
 
4.      Compensation. Executive’s compensation during his employment under the terms of this Agreement shall be as follows:  
 

(a)      Base Salary. Luby’s shall pay to Executive a fixed annual base salary (the “Base Salary”) of Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) for each year of the Term. The Base 
Salary shall be payable in equal, semi-monthly installments on the 15th day and last day of each month or at such other times and in such installments as may be agreed between Luby’s and 
Executive. All payments shall be subject to the deduction of payroll taxes, income tax withholdings, and similar deductions and withholdings as required by law.  

  (x) twelve (12) months for the activities prohibited by clauses (ii) and (iv) of Section 11(b); and  

  (y) twenty-four (24) months for the activities prohibited by any other provision of Section 11. 
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(b)      Bonus. During each year of the Term, in addition to the Base Salary, Executive shall be eligible, but not entitled, to receive bonus compensation as the Board of Directors of 
Luby’s or an authorized committee thereof shall from time to time determine in its sole discretion. 
 
5.      Expenses and Benefits. 

 
(a)      During his employment hereunder, Executive is authorized to incur reasonable and appropriate expenses related to the business of Luby’s, including expenses for 

entertainment, travel, and similar matters. Luby’s will reimburse Executive for such expenses upon presentation by Executive of such accounts and records as Luby’s may from time to time 
reasonably require. 

 
(b)      Luby’s also agrees to provide Executive with the following benefits during his employment hereunder: 

 
(i)        Employee Benefit Plans. Executive and, to the extent applicable, Executive’s spouse, dependents, and beneficiaries, shall be allowed to participate on the same terms in 

all benefits, plans, and programs, including improvements or modifications of the same, which are now, or may hereafter be, available to other executive employees of Luby’s; provided 
that Executive shall not be permitted without the express consent of the Board of Directors of Luby’s to participate in any bonus, incentive, profit-sharing, or similar cash payment plan. 
Such benefits, plans, and programs may include, without limitation, stock option or thrift plans, health insurance or health care plans, life insurance, disability insurance, supplemental 
retirement plans, vacation, and sick leave. Luby’s shall not, however, by reason of this paragraph be obligated to institute, maintain, or refrain from changing, amending, or 
discontinuing any such benefit plan or program, so long as such changes are similarly applicable to executive employees generally. 

 
(ii)       Vacations. Executive shall be entitled (in addition to the usual Luby’s holidays) to paid vacation time for periods in each calendar year not exceeding four (4) weeks. 
 
(iii)      Working Facilities. Executive shall be furnished by Luby’s with an office at the Company’s principal office in Houston, Texas, secretarial help and other facilities and 

services, including but not limited to, full use of Luby’s mail and communication facilities and services reasonably suitable to his position and reasonably necessary for the performance 
of his duties under this Agreement.  

 
6.      Positions and Duties. Executive is employed hereunder as Chief Executive Officer of Luby’s or in such other positions as the Parties may mutually agree. In addition, if requested to do 

so, Executive shall serve as the chief executive officer or other officer or as a member of the Board of Directors, or both, of any subsidiary or affiliate of Luby’s. Executive agrees to serve in the position 
referred to above and to perform diligently and to the best of his abilities the duties and services appertaining to such office, as well as such additional duties and services appropriate to such offices 
which the Parties mutually may agree upon from time to time. Executive’s employment shall also be subject to the policies maintained and established by Luby’s that are of general applicability to Luby’s 
executive employees, as such policies may be amended from time to time. Executive’s duties shall be performed principally at Luby’s principal place of business in Houston, Texas and at the locations of 
its operations. Executive acknowledges and agrees that Executive owes a fiduciary duty of loyalty to act at all times in the best interests of Luby’s. In keeping with such duty, Executive represents that he 
owes no duty to any other entity or person regarding, and shall make full disclosure to Luby’s of, all business opportunities pertaining to Company’s business which have not been previously renounced 
by the Board of Directors, as contemplated by Section 11 hereof, and shall not appropriate for Executive’s own benefit any such business opportunities. 
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7.      Extent of Service. Executive shall, during the term of this Agreement, devote his primary working time, attention, energies and business efforts to his duties as an employee of Luby’s and 
to the business and affairs of Luby’s generally, and shall not, during the term of this Agreement, engage, directly or indirectly, in any other business activity whatsoever, whether or not such business 
activity is pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage, except with the consent of the Board of Directors of Luby’s; however, this Section 7 shall not be construed to prevent Executive from, nor 
require board consent with respect to, (i) continuing executive’s senior level management of non-cafeteria style restaurant businesses operated by executive’s privately-held family company (“Executive’s 
Family Company”), (ii)  serving as a member of the board of directors or board of trustees of Executive’s Family Company or other companies or not-for-profit entities, or (iii) from investing his personal, 
private assets as a passive investor in such form or manner as will not require any active services on the part of Executive in the management or operation of the affairs of the companies, partnerships, or 
other business entities in which any such passive investments are made; provided in case of clause (i), (ii), or (iii) such activities do not conflict with the business and affairs of Luby’s or interfere with 
Executive’s ability to perform the services and discharge the duties required of him hereunder. 

 
8.      Termination. 

 
(a)      Termination of Employment. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2, the employment of the Executive pursuant to this Agreement shall terminate prior to the expiration of 

the Term, upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 
 
(i)        the death of the Executive; 
 
(ii)       the termination of the Executive’s employment by Luby’s due to the Executive’s Disability (as defined in Section 8(b)); 
 
(iii)      the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Executive for “Good Reason” (as defined in Section 8(d)); 
 
(iv)      the termination of the Executive’s employment by Luby’s for “Cause” (as defined in Section 8(c)); or 
 
(v)       for any reason whatsoever in the discretion of the Executive or Luby’s. 
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(b)      Disability. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Disability” shall mean Executive becoming incapacitated by accident, sickness, or other circumstance that renders him 
physically or mentally unable to carry out the duties and services required of him hereunder on a full-time basis for more than one hundred twenty (120) days in any one hundred eighty (180) day 
period. If a dispute arises between the Executive and the Company concerning the Executive’s physical or mental ability to continue or return to the performance of his duties as aforesaid, the 
Executive shall submit to examination by a competent physician mutually agreeable to both parties or, if the parties are unable to agree, by a physician appointed by the president of the Harris 
County Medical Association, and such physician’s opinion shall be final and binding. 

 
(c)      Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean:  

 
(i)        Executive’s conviction of a crime constituting a felony, or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude; 
 
(ii)       The commission by Executive, or participation in, an illegal act or acts that were intended to defraud Luby’s; 
 
(iii)      the willful refusal by Executive to fulfill the duties and responsibilities as Chief Executive Officer; 
 
(iv)      the breach by Executive of material provisions of this Agreement, a policy of Luby’s, or the code of conduct of Luby’s in each case after written notice from the Board 

of Directors and, if correctible, the failure to correct such breach within 30 days from the date such notice is given; 
 
(v)       gross negligence or willful misconduct by Executive in the performance of his duties and obligations to Luby’s; 
 
(vi)      willful engagement by Executive in conduct known (or which should have been known) to be materially injurious to Luby’s. 

 
(d)      Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following circumstances, without the consent of the Executive, unless 

such circumstances are remedied in all material respects by Luby’s 30 days after Luby’s receipt of written notice thereof given by the Executive: 
 
(i)      the material diminution in the nature, scope, or duties of the Executive or assignment of duties inconsistent with those of the Chief Executive Officer or a change in the 

location of the principal business office of the Company in which his services are to be carried out, to a place outside of Texas; 
 
(ii)      any breach of a material provision of this Agreement by Luby’s after written notice from Employee and, if correctible, the failure to correct such breach within 30 days 

from the date such notice is given;  
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(iii)      within two years after sale by Luby’s of all or substantially all of its assets or the merger, share exchange, or other reorganization of Luby’s into or with another 
corporation or entity (with respect to which Luby’s does not survive), a diminution in employee benefits (including but not limited to medical, dental, life insurance, and long-term 
disability plans) and perquisites applicable to Executive from the greater of (A) the employee benefits and perquisites provided by Luby’s to executives with comparable duties or (B) 
the employee benefits and perquisites to which Executive was entitled immediately prior to the date on which a change in control occurs. 
 
(e)      Notice of Termination. If Luby’s or Executive desires to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder at any time prior to expiration of the Term, it or he shall do so by giving 

written notice to the other party that it or he has elected to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and stating the proposed effective date and reason for such termination, provided that no 
such action shall alter or amend any other provisions hereof or rights arising hereunder. 
 
9.      Consequences of Termination. 

 
(a)      By Expiration. If Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate upon expiration of the Term, then all compensation for periods subsequent to termination and all benefits to 

Executive hereunder, other than (i) the nonqualified stock option to purchase 1,120,000 shares of Common Stock of Luby’s, with an exercise price per share equal to five dollars ($5.00) per share 
dated March 9, 2001 and (ii) any other equity based compensation awards granted to Executive by Luby’s (collectively, the “Awards”), each of which is governed by its own terms in such 
circumstances, shall terminate contemporaneously with termination of his employment. 

 
(b)      Death or Disability. If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Term by reason of the Executive’s death or Disability, all Compensation and benefits to Executive 

under this Agreement, other than the Awards, each of which is governed by its own terms in such circumstances, shall terminate contemporaneously with the termination of employment and 
without further obligation to the Executive or the Executive’s legal representatives under the Agreement (other than payment of the Executive’s Base Salary in respect of the period through his 
date of death or termination for Disability). 

 
(c)      Termination by the Executive without Good Reason or by the Company For Cause. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive without Good Reason, or by 

the Company for Cause, all compensation and benefits to Executive under this Agreement, other than the Awards, each of which is governed by its own terms in such circumstances, shall 
terminate contemporaneously with such termination of employment and without further obligation to Executive or Executive’s legal representatives under this Agreement (other than payment of 
Executive’s Base Salary in respect of the period through his date of termination). 
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(d)      Termination by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. 
 
(i)      If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Company shall be obligated to pay to, or make 

available to, the Executive Executive’s monthly Base Salary and benefits in effect on the date of termination for the remainder of the Term. The Executive shall have no obligation to seek 
other employment during any time period for which he may receive payment pursuant to this subsection (d), and in the event the Executive obtains other employment during such 
period, the Company’s obligations to make payments pursuant to this subsection (d) shall not be reduced. In the event that continued participation in any Luby’s benefit plan 
contemplated by Section 5(b)(i) hereof is for whatever reason impermissible during the remainder of the Term, Company shall arrange upon comparable terms benefits substantially 
equivalent to those that may not be so provided under the plan maintained by Luby’s. The parties agree that the payments provided for herein constitute part of the consideration 
provided by the Company for the Executive’s agreements contained in Section 6 hereof. 

 
(ii)      Notwithstanding clause (i) of this subsection (d), if, at any time during which the Executive would otherwise be entitled to receive any payment pursuant to clause (i) 

of subsection (d), the Executive engages in any activity or takes any action which would be prohibited under Sections 10 and 11 hereof, then the Executive shall be deemed to have 
irrevocably forfeited any right to receive any further payments pursuant to this Agreement, provided such forfeiture shall not limit Luby’s rights to seek to enforce such provision or to 
seek damages; provided, however, that the Awards and the benefits thereof shall not be in any way affected by this clause (d)(ii) of this Section 9. 

 
10.      Disclosure of Confidential Information. Executive acknowledges that Luby’s will disclose to Executive, or place Executive in a position to have access to or develop, trade secrets or 

Confidential Information of Luby’s or its affiliates, and shall entrust Executive with business opportunities of Luby’s or its affiliates, and shall place Executive in a position to develop business goodwill 
on behalf of Luby’s or its affiliates. Except to the extent required in the performance of his duties and obligations to Luby’s as expressly authorized herein, or by prior written consent of a duly authorized 
officer or director of Luby’s, Executive will not, directly or indirectly, at any time during his employment with Luby’s, or for 18 months subsequent to the termination thereof, for any reason whatsoever, 
with or without cause, breach the confidence reposed in him by Luby’s by using, disseminating, disclosing, divulging, or in any manner whatsoever disclosing or permitting to be divulged or disclosed in 
any manner Confidential Information to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity. As used herein, the term “Confidential Information” means any and all information concerning 
ideas, concepts, products, processes, and services related to the business of Luby’s, including information relating to research, development, inventions, manufacture, purchasing, accounting, 
engineering, marketing, merchandising, or the selling of any product or products to any customers of Luby’s, disclosed to Executive or known by Executive as a consequence of or through his 
employment by Luby’s (or any parent, subsidiary or affiliated corporations of Luby’s) including, but not necessarily limited to, any person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity with 
which Luby’s has any type of agency agreement, or any shareholders, directors, or officers of any such person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity; provided, however, that 
Confidential Information shall not include information generally known in any industry in which Luby’s is or may become engaged during the term of this Agreement, information disclosed publicly by 
Luby’s or any information, ideas, products, processes, services, and concepts existing and known to Executive prior to his employment by Luby’s. On termination of employment with Luby’s, all 
documents, records, notebooks, e-mails, or similar repositories of or containing Confidential Information, including all copies of any documents, records, notebooks, e-mail, or similar repositories of or 
containing Confidential Information, then in Executive’s possession or in the possession of any third party under the control of Executive or pursuant to any agreement with Executive, whether prepared 
by Executive or any other person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity, will be delivered to Luby’s by Executive. 
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11.      Noncompetition; Standstill. 
 
(a)      Executive recognizes and understands that in performing the responsibilities of his employment, he will occupy a position of fiduciary trust and confidence, pursuant to which 

he will develop and acquire experience and knowledge with respect to Luby’s business. It is the expressed intent and agreement of Executive and Luby’s that such knowledge and experience 
shall be used exclusively in the furtherance of the interests of Luby’s and not in any manner which would be detrimental to Luby’s interests. In consideration of the benefits herein, Executive 
therefore agrees that so long as he is employed by Luby’s and for the Covenant Period after termination of Executive’s employment, Executive will not directly or indirectly:  

 
(i)      engage in any other “cafeteria-style” restaurant business (as defined in the resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated March 7, 2001 adopted in 

connection with Executive's initial employment by the Company) or own any interests whether as an owner, shareholder, joint venturer, partner or otherwise, in any other association or 
entity that engages, directly or indirectly, in any “cafeteria-style” restaurant business in each case in any state where Luby’s or any of its affiliates are conducting business on the date 
of this Agreement or in any contiguous state; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prohibit Executive from holding or making passive investments in limited partnerships or 
corporations whose securities are traded in a generally recognized market provided that Executive’s interest, together with those of his affiliates and family do not exceed 1% of the 
outstanding shares or interests in such corporation or partnership; or 

 
(ii)      render advice or services to, or otherwise assist, any other person, association, or entity engaged, directly or indirectly, in any “cafeteria-style” restaurant business in 

any state where Luby’s or its affiliates conduct business on the date of this Agreement or in any contiguous state; or 
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(iii)      contact or solicit any employee of Luby’s or any of its affiliates to induce them to terminate his or her employment with Luby’s or such affiliates. 
 
(b)      Executive agrees that for so long as he is employed by Luby’s and for the Covenant Period he will not without the prior written consent of the Company: (i) knowingly, after 

due inquiry, sell any shares of Common Stock, or right to acquire Common Stock, to any person or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act , as amended, and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder) that would subsequent to such sale Beneficially Own in excess of 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding Common Stock (1% in the case of industry 
competitors), (ii) solicit, or participate in a solicitation of proxies or votes or consents to vote any voting securities of the Company or grant (except to the Company or its representatives or 
representatives of the Executive) any proxies to vote such securities or subject their shares in the Company to any voting trust or other voting arrangement or agreement, (iii) form, join, or in any 
way participate in, any group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder) with respect to voting securities of the Company, or 
(iv) seek, propose, or make any public statement regarding any merger, tender or exchange offer or other business combination involving the Company or any sale, assignment, transfer, lease or 
other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets; provided, however, the covenants contained in this subsection (b) shall terminate and shall be of no further force or 
effect upon the occurrence of a Change of Control. 

 
12.      Enforcement and Remedies. Executive understands that the restrictions set forth here may limit Executive’s ability to engage in certain businesses in certain geographic regions during 

the period provided for above, but acknowledges that Executive will receive sufficiently high remuneration and other benefits under this Agreement to justify such restriction. Executive acknowledges 
that money damages would not be sufficient remedy for any breach of Section 10 or 11 by Executive, and Luby’s shall be entitled to enforce the provisions thereof by terminating any payments then 
owing to Executive under this Agreement and/or by specific performance and injunctive relief as remedies for such breach or any threatened breach. Such remedies shall not be deemed the exclusive 
remedies for a breach, but shall be in addition to all remedies available at law or in equity to Luby’s, including without limitation, the recovery of damages from Executive and Executive’s agents involved 
in such breach and remedies available to Luby’s pursuant to other agreements with Executive. 
 

13.      Insurance. Luby’s may, in its sole and absolute discretion, at any time after the Effective Date, apply for and procure, as owner and for its own benefit, insurance on the life of Executive, 
in such amounts and in such forms as Luby’s may choose. Unless otherwise agreed by Luby’s, Executive shall have no interest whatsoever in any such policy or policies, but Executive shall, at Luby’s 
request, submit to such medical examinations, supply such information, and execute and deliver such documents as may be required by the insurance company or companies to which Luby’s has applied 
for such insurance.  
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14.      Notice. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) 
to the parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice): 

 

 
Any of the above addresses may be changed at any time by notice given as provided above; provided, however, that any such notice of change of address shall be effective only upon receipt. 

All notices, requests or instructions given in accordance herewith shall be deemed received on the date of delivery, if hand delivered, on the date of receipt, if telecopied, three Business Days after the 
date of mailing, if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and one Business Day after the date of sending, if sent by Federal Express or other recognized overnight courier 
 

15.      CONTROLLING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DETERMINED AND GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, 
WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PROVISIONS. 
 

16.      Additional Instruments. This Agreement governs the rights and obligations of Executive and Luby’s with respect to Executive’s base salary and certain perquisites of employment. 
Executive’s rights and obligations both during the term of his employment and thereafter with respect to stock options, life insurance policies insuring the life of Executive, and other benefits under the 
plans and programs maintained by Luby’s shall be governed by the separate agreements, plans, and other documents and instruments governing such matters.  

If to Executive: Christopher J. Pappas
___________________642 Yale

  Houston, Texas 77007

   
with a copy to: Frank Markantonis

  645 Heights Blvd.

  Houston, Texas 77007

   
and Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P.

  1301 McKinney Suite 5100

  Houston, Texas 77010-3095 
  Attn: Charles H. Still

   
If to Luby’s: Luby’s, Inc. 
  13111 Northwest Freeway, Suite 600

  Houston, Texas 77040

  Attention: Chairman of the Board and

    General Counsel

   
With a copy to: Hornberger Sheehan Fuller & Beiter Incorporated

  7373 Broadway, Suite 300

  San Antonio, Texas 78209

  Attention: Drew R. Fuller, Jr.
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17.      Liquidated Damages. In light of the difficulties in estimating the damages for any early termination of employment, Luby’s and Executive hereby agree that the payments, if any, to be 
received by Executive pursuant to this Agreement shall be received by Executive as liquidated damages. Payment of the amounts set forth in this Agreement, if any, shall be in lieu of any severance 
benefit Executive may be entitled to under any severance plan or policy of Luby’s. 
 

18.      Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any rule of applicable law, or public policy, all other conditions and 
provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated herein are not affected in any manner materially 
adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement 
so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated herein are consummated as originally contemplated to the 
fullest extent possible. 
 

19.      Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged orally, but only by a waiver, modification or discharge in writing signed by the Executive, and 
such officer of the Company as may be designated by the Board. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of any breach by the other party hereto of, or compliance with, any condition or provision of 
this Agreement to be performed by such other party shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the time or at any prior or subsequent time. No agreements or 
representations, oral or otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement. Wherever appropriate 
to the intention of the parties hereto, the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto, will survive any termination or expiration of the term of this Agreement as specifically set forth herein; in 
addition Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 23 shall survive such termination or expiration to the extent the context thereof requires. 
 

20.      Entire Agreement. This Agreement (which term shall be deemed to include the exhibits hereto and any other certificates, documents or instruments delivered hereunder), the Purchase 
Agreement dated March 9, 2001 among the Company, Executives, and the other signatories thereto, as amended from time to time (the “Purchase Agreement”), and the other Transaction Documents (as 
defined in the Purchase Agreement) constitute the entire agreement of the Parties hereto and supercede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties as to the subject 
matter hereof. There are no representations or warranties, agreements, or covenants other than those expressly set forth herein, in the Purchase Agreement and in the other Transaction Documents. 
 

21.      Effect of Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon Executive and his heirs, executors, legal representatives, successors and assigns, and Luby’s and its legal representatives, 
successors and assigns. Except as provided in the preceding sentence, this Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder, are personal and neither this Agreement, nor any right, 
benefit, or obligation of either Party hereto, shall be subject to voluntary or involuntary assignment, alienation, or transfer, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 
the other Party. 
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22.      Execution. This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by facsimile transmission) in one or more counterparts all of which shall be considered one and the same 
agreement and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same 
counterpart.  
 

23.      Deemed Resignations. Any termination of Executive’s employment shall constitute an automatic resignation as an officer and director of Luby’s and each subsidiary or affiliate of 
Luby’s.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 
 

 
14

 
 

  /s/Christopher J. Pappas

  Christopher J. Pappas

   
  Luby’s, Inc. 
   
   
  /s/Gasper Mir, III

  Gasper Mir, III

  Chairman of the Board



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

 
This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”), between Luby’s, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Luby’s” or the “Company”), and Harris J. Pappas, a resident of Houston, Texas, (“Executive”) is 

executed this 9th day of November, 2005 to be effective as of the 1st day of September, 2005 (“Effective Date”). For purposes of this Agreement, “Luby’s” or the “Company” shall include the subsidiaries 
of Luby’s. Luby’s and Executive are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.” The Parties hereby agree as follows:  

 
1.      Definitions. As used in this Agreement, and unless the context requires a different meaning, the following terms have the meanings indicated: 
 
“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person. 

For purposes of this definition and this Agreement, the term “control” (and correlative terms “controlling,” “controlled by” and “under common control with”) means possession of the power, whether by 
contract, equity ownership or otherwise, to direct the policies or management of a Person. 
 

“Associate” has the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act. 
 

“Beneficially Own” or “Beneficial Ownership” is defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 of the Exchange Act, but without taking into account any contractual restrictions or limitations on voting or 
other rights. 
 

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

“Business Combination” means (i) any consolidation, merger, share exchange or similar business combination transaction involving the Company with any Person or (ii) the sale, assignment, 
conveyance, transfer, lease or other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets. 
 

“Change of Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the events described in subsections (i) through (iv) below: 



(i)      The Rights Agreement shall have been determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated by a court of competent jurisdiction in a final and non-appealable judgment 
rendered in connection with a contest for control of the Company and a substitute defense mechanism having the effectiveness of the Rights Agreement is not promptly adopted or, if 
adopted, is determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated, and either (y) the Company has received a report on Schedule 13D, or an amendment to such a report, filed with the SEC 
pursuant to Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act disclosing that any Person or 13d Group other than Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates and 
Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, Beneficially Owns, directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common 
Stock, or (z) the Board of Directors has actual knowledge of facts on the basis of which any Person or 13d Group other than Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together 
with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, is required to file such a report on Schedule 13D, or to make an amendment to such a report, with the 
SEC (or would be required to file such a report or amendment upon the lapse of the applicable period of time specified in Section 13(d) of the Securities Act) disclosing that such Person 
or 13d Group other than Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, Beneficially Owns, 
directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock. 

 
(ii)      Either (y) the purchase by any Person, other than the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company or Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or 

together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a part, of shares of Common Stock pursuant to a tender or exchange offer to acquire any Common 
Stock (or securities convertible into Common Stock) for cash, securities or any other consideration or (z) any Person, other than the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company or Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas or any of their Affiliates, Associates or members of any 13d Group of which they are a part, individually or together, shall make any such 
offer to acquire any Common Stock pursuant to a tender or exchange offer for cash, securities or any other consideration and either (1) the Company shall have recommended that 
stockholders accept such offer or (2) within 10 business days (as such term is used in Rule 14e-2 under the Exchange Act), the Company shall have made no recommendation that 
stockholders reject such offer or (3) the Company shall have recommended that stockholders reject such offer and the Rights Agreement shall have been determined to be invalid or is 
otherwise abrogated by a court of competent jurisdiction in a final and non-appealable judgment rendered in connection with a contest for control of the Company and a substitute 
defense mechanism having the effectiveness of the Rights Agreement is not promptly adopted or, if adopted, is determined to be invalid or is otherwise abrogated, provided that, after 
consummation of any such offer, such Person Beneficially Owns, or would Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the 
outstanding Common Stock (calculated as provided in paragraph (d) of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act in the case of rights to acquire stock). 
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(iii)      The Company shall, after approval by its Board of Directors or an authorized committee thereof, enter into any agreement contemplating a transaction described 
below, other than any such transaction with Harris J. Pappas or Harris J. Pappas, individually or together with their Affiliates and Associates and any 13d Group of which they are a 
part:  (v) a transaction pursuant to which the Company agrees to issue or sell, regardless of the consideration therefor, a number of its shares of Common Stock that would result in any 
Person acquiring Beneficial Ownership, directly or indirectly, of twenty percent or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock, calculated as in clause (ii) 
above; (w) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which the Company is not the continuing or surviving corporation or pursuant to which shares of 
Common Stock would be converted into cash, securities or other property, other than a consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which holders of its 
Common Stock immediately prior to the consolidation or merger or similar transaction own at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the 
surviving corporation immediately after the consolidation, merger or similar transaction (or at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of a 
corporation which owns directly or indirectly all of the voting stock of the surviving corporation); (x) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company in which 
the Company is the continuing or surviving corporation but in which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to the consolidation, merger or similar transaction do not hold 
at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding Common Stock of the continuing or surviving corporation (except where such holders of Common Stock hold at least 
a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the corporation which owns directly or indirectly all of the voting stock of the Company); (y) any sale, lease, 
exchange or other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of all or substantially all the assets of the Company (except such a transfer to a corporation which is 
wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company), or any complete liquidation of the Company; or (z) any consolidation, merger or similar transaction involving the Company where, 
after the consolidation, merger or similar transaction, one Person owns 100% of the shares of Common Stock (except where the holders of the Company’s voting stock immediately prior 
to such consolidation, merger or similar transaction own at least a majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding capital stock of such Person immediately after such 
consolidation, merger or similar transaction). 
 

(iv)      A change in the majority of the members of the board of directors of the Company within a 24-month period unless the election or nomination for election by the 
shareholders of each new director was approved by the vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office who were in office at the beginning of the 24-month period. 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, the “effective date of a Change of Control” is the date that an event described in subsection (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) occurs or the date upon which all the events 
necessary to constitute the Change of Control shall have occurred. 
 
“Common Stock” means the Company’s common stock, par value $.32 per share, and any capital stock for or into which such Common Stock hereafter is exchanged, converted, reclassified or 

recapitalized by the Company or pursuant to an agreement or Business Combination to which the Company is a party. 
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“Covenant Period” means: 
 
(i)      twenty-four (24) months if Employee is terminated by the Company for Cause or if Executive terminates his employment without Good Reason; or (ii) if Executive’s 

employment is terminated for any other reason; 
 

 

 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder. 

 
“Person” means an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, limited liability company, joint venture, joint stock company, government (or an 

agency or political subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind. 
 
“Rights Agreement” means the Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 between the Company and Ameritrust Company, N.A. as Agent, as amended from time to time. 
 
“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
“13d Group” means a group within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. 
 
2.      Employment. Luby’s hereby employs Executive, and Executive hereby accepts employment with Luby’s, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  
 
3.      Term. Subject to the provisions for termination of employment as provided in Section 8(a), Executive’s employment under this Agreement shall be for a period beginning on the Effective 

Date and ending on August 31, 2008 (“Term”). 
 
4.      Compensation. Executive’s compensation during his employment under the terms of this Agreement shall be as follows:  
 

(a)      Base Salary. Luby’s shall pay to Executive a fixed annual base salary (the “Base Salary”) of Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) for each year of the Term. The Base 
Salary shall be payable in equal, semi-monthly installments on the 15th day and last day of each month or at such other times and in such installments as may be agreed between Luby’s and 
Executive. All payments shall be subject to the deduction of payroll taxes, income tax withholdings, and similar deductions and withholdings as required by law.  

  (x) twelve (12) months for the activities prohibited by clauses (ii) and (iv) of Section 11(b); and  

  (y) twenty-four (24) months for the activities prohibited by any other provision of Section 11. 

4



(b)      Bonus. During each year of the Term, in addition to the Base Salary, Executive shall be eligible, but not entitled, to receive bonus compensation as the Board of Directors of 
Luby’s or an authorized committee thereof shall from time to time determine in its sole discretion. 
 
5.      Expenses and Benefits. 

 
(a)      During his employment hereunder, Executive is authorized to incur reasonable and appropriate expenses related to the business of Luby’s, including expenses for 

entertainment, travel, and similar matters. Luby’s will reimburse Executive for such expenses upon presentation by Executive of such accounts and records as Luby’s may from time to time 
reasonably require. 

 
(b)      Luby’s also agrees to provide Executive with the following benefits during his employment hereunder: 

 
(i)     Employee Benefit Plans. Executive and, to the extent applicable, Executive’s spouse, dependents, and beneficiaries, shall be allowed to participate on the same terms in all 

benefits, plans, and programs, including improvements or modifications of the same, which are now, or may hereafter be, available to other executive employees of Luby’s; provided that 
Executive shall not be permitted without the express consent of the Board of Directors of Luby’s to participate in any bonus, incentive, profit-sharing, or similar cash payment plan. Such 
benefits, plans, and programs may include, without limitation, stock option or thrift plans, health insurance or health care plans, life insurance, disability insurance, supplemental 
retirement plans, vacation, and sick leave. Luby’s shall not, however, by reason of this paragraph be obligated to institute, maintain, or refrain from changing, amending, or 
discontinuing any such benefit plan or program, so long as such changes are similarly applicable to executive employees generally. 

 
(ii)     Vacations. Executive shall be entitled (in addition to the usual Luby’s holidays) to paid vacation time for periods in each calendar year not exceeding four (4) weeks. 
 
(iii)    Working Facilities. Executive shall be furnished by Luby’s with an office at the Company’s principal office in Houston, Texas, secretarial help and other facilities and 

services, including but not limited to, full use of Luby’s mail and communication facilities and services reasonably suitable to his position and reasonably necessary for the performance 
of his duties under this Agreement.  

 
6.      Positions and Duties. Executive is employed hereunder as Chief Executive Officer of Luby’s or in such other positions as the Parties may mutually agree. In addition, if requested to do 

so, Executive shall serve as the chief executive officer or other officer or as a member of the Board of Directors, or both, of any subsidiary or affiliate of Luby’s. Executive agrees to serve in the position 
referred to above and to perform diligently and to the best of his abilities the duties and services appertaining to such office, as well as such additional duties and services appropriate to such offices 
which the Parties mutually may agree upon from time to time. Executive’s employment shall also be subject to the policies maintained and established by Luby’s that are of general applicability to Luby’s 
executive employees, as such policies may be amended from time to time. Executive’s duties shall be performed principally at Luby’s principal place of business in Houston, Texas and at the locations of 
its operations. Executive acknowledges and agrees that Executive owes a fiduciary duty of loyalty to act at all times in the best interests of Luby’s. In keeping with such duty, Executive represents that he 
owes no duty to any other entity or person regarding, and shall make full disclosure to Luby’s of, all business opportunities pertaining to Company’s business which have not been previously renounced 
by the Board of Directors, as contemplated by Section 11 hereof, and shall not appropriate for Executive’s own benefit any such business opportunities. 
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7.      Extent of Service. Executive shall, during the term of this Agreement, devote his primary working time, attention, energies and business efforts to his duties as an employee of Luby’s and 
to the business and affairs of Luby’s generally, and shall not, during the term of this Agreement, engage, directly or indirectly, in any other business activity whatsoever, whether or not such business 
activity is pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage, except with the consent of the Board of Directors of Luby’s; however, this Section 7 shall not be construed to prevent Executive from, nor 
require board consent with respect to, (i) continuing executive’s senior level management of non-cafeteria style restaurant businesses operated by executive’s privately-held family company (“Executive’s 
Family Company”), (ii)  serving as a member of the board of directors or board of trustees of Executive’s Family Company or other companies or not-for-profit entities, or (iii) from investing his personal, 
private assets as a passive investor in such form or manner as will not require any active services on the part of Executive in the management or operation of the affairs of the companies, partnerships, or 
other business entities in which any such passive investments are made; provided in case of clause (i), (ii), or (iii) such activities do not conflict with the business and affairs of Luby’s or interfere with 
Executive’s ability to perform the services and discharge the duties required of him hereunder. 

 
8.      Termination. 

 
(a)      Termination of Employment. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2, the employment of the Executive pursuant to this Agreement shall terminate prior to the expiration of 

the Term, upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 
 
(i)        the death of the Executive; 
 
(ii)       the termination of the Executive’s employment by Luby’s due to the Executive’s Disability (as defined in Section 8(b)); 
 
(iii)      the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Executive for “Good Reason” (as defined in Section 8(d)); 
 
(iv)      the termination of the Executive’s employment by Luby’s for “Cause” (as defined in Section 8(c)); or 
 
(v)       for any reason whatsoever in the discretion of the Executive or Luby’s. 

6



(b)      Disability. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Disability” shall mean Executive becoming incapacitated by accident, sickness, or other circumstance that renders him 
physically or mentally unable to carry out the duties and services required of him hereunder on a full-time basis for more than one hundred twenty (120) days in any one hundred eighty (180) day 
period. If a dispute arises between the Executive and the Company concerning the Executive’s physical or mental ability to continue or return to the performance of his duties as aforesaid, the 
Executive shall submit to examination by a competent physician mutually agreeable to both parties or, if the parties are unable to agree, by a physician appointed by the president of the Harris 
County Medical Association, and such physician’s opinion shall be final and binding. 

 
(c)      Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean:  

 
(i)        Executive’s conviction of a crime constituting a felony, or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude; 
 
(ii)       The commission by Executive, or participation in, an illegal act or acts that were intended to defraud Luby’s; 
 
(iii)      the willful refusal by Executive to fulfill the duties and responsibilities as Chief Executive Officer; 
 
(iv)      the breach by Executive of material provisions of this Agreement, a policy of Luby’s, or the code of conduct of Luby’s in each case after written notice from the Board 

of Directors and, if correctible, the failure to correct such breach within 30 days from the date such notice is given; 
 
(v)       gross negligence or willful misconduct by Executive in the performance of his duties and obligations to Luby’s; 
 
(vi)      willful engagement by Executive in conduct known (or which should have been known) to be materially injurious to Luby’s. 

 
(d)      Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following circumstances, without the consent of the Executive, unless 

such circumstances are remedied in all material respects by Luby’s 30 days after Luby’s receipt of written notice thereof given by the Executive: 
 
(i)      the material diminution in the nature, scope, or duties of the Executive or assignment of duties inconsistent with those of the Chief Executive Officer or a change in the 

location of the principal business office of the Company in which his services are to be carried out, to a place outside of Texas; 
 
(ii)      any breach of a material provision of this Agreement by Luby’s after written notice from Employee and, if correctible, the failure to correct such breach within 30 days 

from the date such notice is given;  
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(iii)      within two years after sale by Luby’s of all or substantially all of its assets or the merger, share exchange, or other reorganization of Luby’s into or with another 
corporation or entity (with respect to which Luby’s does not survive), a diminution in employee benefits (including but not limited to medical, dental, life insurance, and long-term 
disability plans) and perquisites applicable to Executive from the greater of (A) the employee benefits and perquisites provided by Luby’s to executives with comparable duties or (B) 
the employee benefits and perquisites to which Executive was entitled immediately prior to the date on which a change in control occurs. 
 
(e)      Notice of Termination. If Luby’s or Executive desires to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder at any time prior to expiration of the Term, it or he shall do so by giving 

written notice to the other party that it or he has elected to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and stating the proposed effective date and reason for such termination, provided that no 
such action shall alter or amend any other provisions hereof or rights arising hereunder. 
 
9.      Consequences of Termination. 

 
(a)      By Expiration. If Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate upon expiration of the Term, then all compensation for periods subsequent to termination and all benefits to 

Executive hereunder, other than (i) the nonqualified stock option to purchase 1,120,000 shares of Common Stock of Luby’s, with an exercise price per share equal to five dollars ($5.00) per share 
dated March 9, 2001 and (ii) any other equity based compensation awards granted to Executive by Luby’s (collectively, the “Awards”), each of which is governed by its own terms in such 
circumstances, shall terminate contemporaneously with termination of his employment. 

 
(b)      Death or Disability. If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Term by reason of the Executive’s death or Disability, all Compensation and benefits to Executive 

under this Agreement, other than the Awards, each of which is governed by its own terms in such circumstances, shall terminate contemporaneously with the termination of employment and 
without further obligation to the Executive or the Executive’s legal representatives under the Agreement (other than payment of the Executive’s Base Salary in respect of the period through his 
date of death or termination for Disability). 

 
(c)      Termination by the Executive without Good Reason or by the Company For Cause. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive without Good Reason, or by 

the Company for Cause, all compensation and benefits to Executive under this Agreement, other than the Awards, each of which is governed by its own terms in such circumstances, shall 
terminate contemporaneously with such termination of employment and without further obligation to Executive or Executive’s legal representatives under this Agreement (other than payment of 
Executive’s Base Salary in respect of the period through his date of termination). 
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(d)      Termination by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. 
 
(i)      If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, the Company shall be obligated to pay to, or make 

available to, the Executive Executive’s monthly Base Salary and benefits in effect on the date of termination for the remainder of the Term. The Executive shall have no obligation to seek 
other employment during any time period for which he may receive payment pursuant to this subsection (d), and in the event the Executive obtains other employment during such 
period, the Company’s obligations to make payments pursuant to this subsection (d) shall not be reduced. In the event that continued participation in any Luby’s benefit plan 
contemplated by Section 5(b)(i) hereof is for whatever reason impermissible during the remainder of the Term, Company shall arrange upon comparable terms benefits substantially 
equivalent to those that may not be so provided under the plan maintained by Luby’s. The parties agree that the payments provided for herein constitute part of the consideration 
provided by the Company for the Executive’s agreements contained in Section 6 hereof. 

 
(ii)      Notwithstanding clause (i) of this subsection (d), if, at any time during which the Executive would otherwise be entitled to receive any payment pursuant to clause (i) 

of subsection (d), the Executive engages in any activity or takes any action which would be prohibited under Sections 10 and 11 hereof, then the Executive shall be deemed to have 
irrevocably forfeited any right to receive any further payments pursuant to this Agreement, provided such forfeiture shall not limit Luby’s rights to seek to enforce such provision or to 
seek damages; provided, however, that the Awards and the benefits thereof shall not be in any way affected by this clause (d)(ii) of this Section 9. 

 
10.      Disclosure of Confidential Information. Executive acknowledges that Luby’s will disclose to Executive, or place Executive in a position to have access to or develop, trade secrets or 

Confidential Information of Luby’s or its affiliates, and shall entrust Executive with business opportunities of Luby’s or its affiliates, and shall place Executive in a position to develop business goodwill 
on behalf of Luby’s or its affiliates. Except to the extent required in the performance of his duties and obligations to Luby’s as expressly authorized herein, or by prior written consent of a duly authorized 
officer or director of Luby’s, Executive will not, directly or indirectly, at any time during his employment with Luby’s, or for 18 months subsequent to the termination thereof, for any reason whatsoever, 
with or without cause, breach the confidence reposed in him by Luby’s by using, disseminating, disclosing, divulging, or in any manner whatsoever disclosing or permitting to be divulged or disclosed in 
any manner Confidential Information to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity. As used herein, the term “Confidential Information” means any and all information concerning 
ideas, concepts, products, processes, and services related to the business of Luby’s, including information relating to research, development, inventions, manufacture, purchasing, accounting, 
engineering, marketing, merchandising, or the selling of any product or products to any customers of Luby’s, disclosed to Executive or known by Executive as a consequence of or through his 
employment by Luby’s (or any parent, subsidiary or affiliated corporations of Luby’s) including, but not necessarily limited to, any person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity with 
which Luby’s has any type of agency agreement, or any shareholders, directors, or officers of any such person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity; provided, however, that 
Confidential Information shall not include information generally known in any industry in which Luby’s is or may become engaged during the term of this Agreement, information disclosed publicly by 
Luby’s or any information, ideas, products, processes, services, and concepts existing and known to Executive prior to his employment by Luby’s. On termination of employment with Luby’s, all 
documents, records, notebooks, e-mails, or similar repositories of or containing Confidential Information, including all copies of any documents, records, notebooks, e-mail, or similar repositories of or 
containing Confidential Information, then in Executive’s possession or in the possession of any third party under the control of Executive or pursuant to any agreement with Executive, whether prepared 
by Executive or any other person, firm, corporation, association, or other business entity, will be delivered to Luby’s by Executive. 
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11.      Noncompetition; Standstill. 
 
(a)      Executive recognizes and understands that in performing the responsibilities of his employment, he will occupy a position of fiduciary trust and confidence, pursuant to which 

he will develop and acquire experience and knowledge with respect to Luby’s business. It is the expressed intent and agreement of Executive and Luby’s that such knowledge and experience 
shall be used exclusively in the furtherance of the interests of Luby’s and not in any manner which would be detrimental to Luby’s interests. In consideration of the benefits herein, Executive 
therefore agrees that so long as he is employed by Luby’s and for the Covenant Period after termination of Executive’s employment, Executive will not directly or indirectly:  

 
(i)      engage in any other “cafeteria-style” restaurant business (as defined in the resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated March 7, 2001 adopted in 

connection with Executive's initial employment by the Company) or own any interests whether as an owner, shareholder, joint venturer, partner or otherwise, in any other association or 
entity that engages, directly or indirectly, in any “cafeteria-style” restaurant business in each case in any state where Luby’s or any of its affiliates are conducting business on the date 
of this Agreement or in any contiguous state; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prohibit Executive from holding or making passive investments in limited partnerships or 
corporations whose securities are traded in a generally recognized market provided that Executive’s interest, together with those of his affiliates and family do not exceed 1% of the 
outstanding shares or interests in such corporation or partnership; or 

 
(ii)      render advice or services to, or otherwise assist, any other person, association, or entity engaged, directly or indirectly, in any “cafeteria-style” restaurant business in 

any state where Luby’s or its affiliates conduct business on the date of this Agreement or in any contiguous state; or 
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(iii)      contact or solicit any employee of Luby’s or any of its affiliates to induce them to terminate his or her employment with Luby’s or such affiliates. 
 
(b)      Executive agrees that for so long as he is employed by Luby’s and for the Covenant Period he will not without the prior written consent of the Company: (i) knowingly, after 

due inquiry, sell any shares of Common Stock, or right to acquire Common Stock, to any person or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act , as amended, and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder) that would subsequent to such sale Beneficially Own in excess of 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding Common Stock (1% in the case of industry 
competitors), (ii) solicit, or participate in a solicitation of proxies or votes or consents to vote any voting securities of the Company or grant (except to the Company or its representatives or 
representatives of the Executive) any proxies to vote such securities or subject their shares in the Company to any voting trust or other voting arrangement or agreement, (iii) form, join, or in any 
way participate in, any group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder) with respect to voting securities of the Company, or 
(iv) seek, propose, or make any public statement regarding any merger, tender or exchange offer or other business combination involving the Company or any sale, assignment, transfer, lease or 
other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets; provided, however, the covenants contained in this subsection (b) shall terminate and shall be of no further force or 
effect upon the occurrence of a Change of Control. 

 
12.      Enforcement and Remedies. Executive understands that the restrictions set forth here may limit Executive’s ability to engage in certain businesses in certain geographic regions during 

the period provided for above, but acknowledges that Executive will receive sufficiently high remuneration and other benefits under this Agreement to justify such restriction. Executive acknowledges 
that money damages would not be sufficient remedy for any breach of Section 10 or 11 by Executive, and Luby’s shall be entitled to enforce the provisions thereof by terminating any payments then 
owing to Executive under this Agreement and/or by specific performance and injunctive relief as remedies for such breach or any threatened breach. Such remedies shall not be deemed the exclusive 
remedies for a breach, but shall be in addition to all remedies available at law or in equity to Luby’s, including without limitation, the recovery of damages from Executive and Executive’s agents involved 
in such breach and remedies available to Luby’s pursuant to other agreements with Executive. 
 

13.      Insurance. Luby’s may, in its sole and absolute discretion, at any time after the Effective Date, apply for and procure, as owner and for its own benefit, insurance on the life of Executive, 
in such amounts and in such forms as Luby’s may choose. Unless otherwise agreed by Luby’s, Executive shall have no interest whatsoever in any such policy or policies, but Executive shall, at Luby’s 
request, submit to such medical examinations, supply such information, and execute and deliver such documents as may be required by the insurance company or companies to which Luby’s has applied 
for such insurance.  
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14.      Notice. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) 
to the parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice): 

 
Any of the above addresses may be changed at any time by notice given as provided above; provided, however, that any such notice of change of address shall be effective only upon receipt. 

All notices, requests or instructions given in accordance herewith shall be deemed received on the date of delivery, if hand delivered, on the date of receipt, if telecopied, three Business Days after the 
date of mailing, if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and one Business Day after the date of sending, if sent by Federal Express or other recognized overnight courier 
 

15.      CONTROLLING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DETERMINED AND GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, 
WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PROVISIONS. 
 

16.      Additional Instruments. This Agreement governs the rights and obligations of Executive and Luby’s with respect to Executive’s base salary and certain perquisites of employment. 
Executive’s rights and obligations both during the term of his employment and thereafter with respect to stock options, life insurance policies insuring the life of Executive, and other benefits under the 
plans and programs maintained by Luby’s shall be governed by the separate agreements, plans, and other documents and instruments governing such matters.  

If to Executive: Harris J. Pappas

  642 Yale

  Houston, Texas 77007

   
with a copy to: Frank Markantonis
_____________________645 Heights Blvd.

  Houston, Texas 77007

   
and Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P.

  1301 McKinney Suite 5100

  Houston, Texas 77010-3095 
  Attn: Charles H. Still

   
If to Luby’s: Luby’s, Inc. 
  13111 Northwest Freeway, Suite 600

  Houston, Texas 77040

  Attention: Chairman of the Board and

    General Counsel

   
   
With a copy to: Hornberger Sheehan Fuller & Beiter Incorporated

  7373 Broadway, Suite 300

  San Antonio, Texas 78209

  Attention: Drew R. Fuller, Jr.
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17.      Liquidated Damages. In light of the difficulties in estimating the damages for any early termination of employment, Luby’s and Executive hereby agree that the payments, if any, to be 
received by Executive pursuant to this Agreement shall be received by Executive as liquidated damages. Payment of the amounts set forth in this Agreement, if any, shall be in lieu of any severance 
benefit Executive may be entitled to under any severance plan or policy of Luby’s. 
 

18.      Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any rule of applicable law, or public policy, all other conditions and 
provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated herein are not affected in any manner materially 
adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement 
so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated herein are consummated as originally contemplated to the 
fullest extent possible. 
 

19.      Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged orally, but only by a waiver, modification or discharge in writing signed by the Executive, and 
such officer of the Company as may be designated by the Board. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of any breach by the other party hereto of, or compliance with, any condition or provision of 
this Agreement to be performed by such other party shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the time or at any prior or subsequent time. No agreements or 
representations, oral or otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement. Wherever appropriate 
to the intention of the parties hereto, the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto, will survive any termination or expiration of the term of this Agreement as specifically set forth herein; in 
addition Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 23 shall survive such termination or expiration to the extent the context thereof requires. 
 

20.      Entire Agreement. This Agreement (which term shall be deemed to include the exhibits hereto and any other certificates, documents or instruments delivered hereunder), the Purchase 
Agreement dated March 9, 2001 among the Company, Executives, and the other signatories thereto, as amended from time to time (the “Purchase Agreement”), and the other Transaction Documents (as 
defined in the Purchase Agreement) constitute the entire agreement of the Parties hereto and supercede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties as to the subject 
matter hereof. There are no representations or warranties, agreements, or covenants other than those expressly set forth herein, in the Purchase Agreement and in the other Transaction Documents. 
 

21.      Effect of Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon Executive and his heirs, executors, legal representatives, successors and assigns, and Luby’s and its legal representatives, 
successors and assigns. Except as provided in the preceding sentence, this Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder, are personal and neither this Agreement, nor any right, 
benefit, or obligation of either Party hereto, shall be subject to voluntary or involuntary assignment, alienation, or transfer, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 
the other Party. 
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22.      Execution. This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by facsimile transmission) in one or more counterparts all of which shall be considered one and the same 
agreement and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same 
counterpart.  
 

23.      Deemed Resignations. Any termination of Executive’s employment shall constitute an automatic resignation as an officer and director of Luby’s and each subsidiary or affiliate of 
Luby’s.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
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  /s/Harris J. Pappas

  Harris J. Pappas

   
  Luby’s, Inc. 
   
   
  /s/Gasper Mir, III
  Gasper Mir, III
  Chairman of the Board



Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-81606, 333-81608, 333-70315, and 333-55140) pertaining to the Luby’s, Inc. Amended and Restated 
Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan, miscellaneous employee benefit plans, Luby’s Incentive Stock Plan, and Luby’s, Inc. Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan of our reports dated November 
4, 2005, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Luby’s Inc., Luby’s Inc. management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting of Luby’s, Inc., included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended August 31, 2005. 
 

 
San Antonio, Texas
November 11, 2005

 

 



Certification
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

 
I, Christopher J. Pappas, certify that: 
 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Luby's, Inc. and will be retained by Luby's, Inc. and furnished to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
 

  
 

  1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Luby's, Inc.; 

  2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances 
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

  3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

  4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to 
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

  d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

  5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee 
of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

  a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's 
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

  b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 9, 2005    
       
      /s/Christopher J. Pappas

      Christopher J. Pappas

      President and Chief Executive Officer



Certification
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I, Ernest Pekmezaris, certify that: 
 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Luby's, Inc. and will be retained by Luby's, Inc. and furnished to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
 

 

  1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Luby's, Inc.; 

  2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances 
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

  3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

  4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to 
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

  d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

  5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee 
of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

  a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's 
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 9, 2005    
       
      /s/Ernest Pekmezaris

      Ernest Pekmezaris

      Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
 
In connection with the Annual Report of Luby's, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Christopher J. Pappas, 
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 
 
(1)  The report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
 
(2)  The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Luby's, Inc. and will be retained by Luby's, Inc. and furnished to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
  
  

 

Date: November 9, 2005   /s/Christopher J. Pappas 
      Christopher J. Pappas

President and Chief Executive Officer



Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
 
In connection with the Annual Report of Luby's, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended August 25, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Ernest Pekmezaris, 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 
 
(1)  The report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
 
(2)  The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Luby's, Inc. and will be retained by Luby's, Inc. and furnished to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
  
  

 

Date: November 9, 2005   /s/Ernest Pekmezaris 
      Ernest Pekmezaris 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer


